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FINCA UNIVERSAL CREDIT ORGANIZATION CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE PREPARATION AND APPROVAL
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Management of FINCA Universal Credit Organization Closed Joint Stock Company (the “Organization”) is
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that present fairly the financial position of The
Organization as at December 31, 2021, and the related statements of profit or loss, comprehensive income for
the year then ended, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and of significant accounting
policies and notes to the financial statements (the “financial statements”) in compliance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).

In preparing the financial statements, ma nagement is responsible for:

® Properly selecting and applying accounting policies;

° Presenting information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable information:

° Providing additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient
to enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on
the Organization’s financial position and financial performance; and

° Making an assessment of the Organization’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Management is also responsible for:

° Designing, implementing and maintaining an effective and sound system of internal controls, throughout
the Organization;

®  Maintaining adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Organization’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Organization,
and which enable them to ensure that the financial statements of the Organization comply with IFRS;

° Maintaining statutory accounting records in compliance with legislation and accounting standards
of the Republic of Armenia;

*  Taking such steps as are reasonably available to them to safeguard the assets of the Organization; and
° Preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

The financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 were approved by the Management
of the Organization on May 6, 2022.

On behalf of the Management Board: - ‘ T

£/ )

Vardan Haroyan
Chief Operational officer/
acting Chief Executive Officer

/Anush Petrosyan
/ Chief Financial Officer/Chief Accountant

May 6, 2022 May 6, 2022
Yerevan, Republic of Armenia Yerevan, Republic of Armenia
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of FINCA Universal Credit Organization Closed Joint Stock Com pany:
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of FINCA Universal Credit Organization Closed
Joint Stock Company (the “Organization”), which comprise the statement of financial
position as at December 31, 2021, and the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Organization as at December 31 202 1, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Organization in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “IESBA Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matter is a matter that, in our professional judgment, is of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. This matter was addressed in

the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on this matter.

Delaitte refers to one or more of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, a UK Deloitte refers to one or more of Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu Limited, a UK private company limited by guarantee, and its network of member firms, each of
which is a legally separate and independent entity. Please see www.deloitte.com/about for a detailed description of
the legal structure of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited and its member firms. Please see
www.deloitte.com/ru/about for a detailed description of the legal structure of Deloitte CIS.

© 2022 Deloitte Armenia CISC. All rights reserved.



Why the matter was determined to be a key
audit matter

How the matter was addressed in the audit

Assessment of expected credit losses (ECL)
on loans to customers

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the
Organization reported Loans to customers at
amortized cost of 23,117,991 thousand AMD
and 24,298,801thousand AMD and ECL of
4,870,267 thousand AMD and 4,488,569
thousand AMD, respectively.

For loans assessed on a collective basis, there
is a risk of errors in the underlying data used
in assessment of the ECL, and assumptions
used in assessing probability of default (PD),
loss given default (LGD) and inconsistency of
historical and forward-looking information
with available market based data.

Due to the significance and subjectivity of
judgements used by management of the
Organization, the volume of loans assessed
on a collective basis and increased
judgement and estimation uncertainty as a
result of COVID-19, external economic
environment and post-war recoveries, we
identified the collective assessment of
expected credit losses, particularly the
assessment of the probability of default, as a
key audit matter.

In particular we focused our procedures on
the following issues:

e  The principal assumptions and
significant inputs underlying the
estimation of ECL and corresponding
risk rating system for performing
loans and the integrity of the models
to make those calculations;

e  Timely identification of significant
increase in credit risk and event of
default based on quantitative and
qualitative factors;

e Correct allocation of loans to
customers to stages.

We obtained understanding of the processes
and control procedures related to the loan
origination, credit risk management and ECL
assessment for collectively assessed loans,
including the controls over the timely
identification of significant increase in credit
risk.

We challenged the key assumptions used in
collective ECL models, on a sample basis
tested input data and analyzed the integrity of
those models.

Our work included the following procedures:

° With the involvement of our actuarial
specialists, we tested the mathematical
accuracy and computation of the ECL on
loans to customers assessed on a
collective basis by re-performing and
calculating elements of the expected
credit losses based on relevant source
data. This included assessing the
appropriateness of model design and
formulas used, considering modelling
techniques and recalculating PDs, LGDs
and Exposure at default;

e  We analyzed the principal assumptions
in respect of loan falling into default and
any recoveries expected from defaulted
loans with reference to our knowledge
of industry practices, the Organization’s
actual experience and available and
relevant forward looking information;

° For sample of loans, we ascertained
whether the significant increase in credit
risk had been identified in a timely
manner including, where relevant,
we analyzed borrower’s financial and
non-financial information, overdue days
and checked other relevant impairment
events such as forbearance and certain
financial performance indicators that
had been identified on a timely manner
and had reflected the impact of COVID-
19,



Why the matter was determined to be a key How the matter was addressed in the audit
audit matter

Refer to Notes 4, 6 and 24 to the financial e  Onasample basis, we tested the
statements for the description of the accuracy and completeness of the key
Organization’s policy and disclosures of gross underlying input data (aging, exposure at
carrying amounts and related allowances default, recovery of loans after default,
balances. forward looking information).

We assessed the accuracy and completeness
of the disclosures in the financial statements
relating to the loans to customers to ensure
compliance with IFRS requirements.

We found no material exceptions in these
tests.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises

the information included in the Annual report of the Organization for 2021, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The 2021 Annual report is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read

the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing

the Organization’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Organization or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Organization’s financial
reporting process.



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

®  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Organization’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Organization to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have com plied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.



From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period, and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Srbulli Hakobyan "

Executive Director

Deloitte Armenia CJSC
May 6, 2022



FINCA UNIVERSAL CREDIT ORGANIZATION CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

(In thousand AMD, unless otherwise stated)

December 31, December 31,
Note 2021 2020

ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents 5 1,549,987 724,687
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1,885 152
Loans to customers 6 18,247,724 19,810,232
Current income tax assets 51,048 359,814
Right-of-use assets 9 440,189 447,912
Property and equipment 7 120,130 178,728
Intangible assets 8 199,008 253,591
Other assets 10 84,383 83,754
TOTAL ASSETS 20,694,354 21,538,870
LIABILITIES:

Debt securities issued 11 3,540,061 5,030,607
Lease liabilities 9 500,013 510,764
Other borrowed funds 12 10,435,446 9,562,356
Deferred income tax liabilities 19 103,042 33,322
Other liabilities 13 279,384 572,409
TOTAL LIABILITIES 14,857,946 15,709,458
EQUITY:

Share capital 15 4,905,960 4,905,960
Reserve Fund 15 343,967 343,967
Retained earnings 586,481 579,485
TOTAL EQUITY 5,836,408 5,829,412
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 20,694,354 21,538,870

On behalf of the Management Board:

i
|
|
|

Vardan Haroyan

9

Chief Operational Officer/
Acting Chief Executive Officer

May 6, 2022
Yerevan, Republic of Armenia

Anush Petr(:»syan '

May 6, 2022
Yerevan, Republic of Armenia

The notes on pages 11-63 form an integral part of these financial statements.




FINCA UNIVERSAL CREDIT ORGANIZATION CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
(In thousand AMD, unless otherwise stated)

Notes 2021 2020

Interest income 16 5,344,799 6,499,827
Interest expense 16,25 (1,279,102) (1,536,214)
Net interest income before impairment losses on interest bearing assets 16 4,065,697 4,963,613
Impairment losses on interest bearing assets 5,6 (1,516,366) (2,648,743)
Net interest income 2,549,331 2,314,870
Modification loss on loans to customers 24 (15,692) (155,631)

Net gain from foreign exchange operations 17 72,775 89,400

Net (loss)/gain on financial assets measured at FVTPL (26,094) 17,833

Fee and commission expense - (14,611)

Net other gain/(loss) 18 161,890 (272,973)

Net non-interest income/(expense) 192,879 (335,982)
Operating income 2,742,210 1,978,888
Staff costs (1,403,556) (1,748,827)
Depreciation and amortization 7,8,9 (367,619) (468,060)
Other operating expenses 20,25 (894,319) (812,091)
Operating expenses (2,665,494) (3,028,978)
Profit/(loss)before income tax 76,716 (1,050,090)
Income tax (expense)/benefit 19 (69,720) 148,518
Net (loss)/profit for the year 6,996 (901,572)
Total comprehensive Income/(loss)for the year 6,996 (901,572)

The notes on pages 11-63 form an integral part of these financial statements.




FINCA UNIVERSAL CREDIT ORGANIZATION CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
(In thousand AMD, unless otherwise stated)

Notes Share capital Reserve Fund Retained earnings Total equity
Balance as at January 1, 2020 4,905,960 297,765 2,023,259 7,226,984
Loss for the year - - (901,572) (901,572)
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - (901,572) (901,572)
Dividends declared 15 - ) (496,000) (496,000)
Transfer to Reserve Fund 46,202 (46,202) -
Balance as at December 31, 2020 4,905,960 343,967 579,485 5,829,412
Profit for the year - - 6,996 6,996
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 6,996 6,996
Balance as at December 31, 2021 4,905,960 343,967 586,481 5,836,408

The notes on pages 11-63 form an integral part of these financial statements.




FINCA UNIVERSAL CREDIT ORGANIZATION CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
(In thousand AMD, unless otherwise stated)

Note 2021 2020
Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit/(loss) before tax 76,716 (1,050,090)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization 7.8,9 367,619 468,060
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property and equipment, intangible assets (7,939) 16,618
Impairment losses on interest bearing assets 5,6 1,516,366 2,648,743
Foreign exchange translation loss/(gain), net 87,904 37,764
Change in provision 18 [126,500] 279,889
Change in other non-cash items 73,221 175,924
Cash flows from operating activities before changes in operating
assets and liabilities 1,987,387 2,576,908
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Change in Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (27,827) (302)
Change in interest on derivative financial assets 18,560 150
Change in loans to customers (712,916) 1,793,295
Change in interest accruals on other borrowed fund, debt securities issued 119,941 15,715
Change in other assets (13,787) (21,477)
Change in right-of-use assets and in lease liabilities 822 (2,167)
Change in other liabilities (52,079) (61,533)
Change in due to bank - (1,209,687)
Change in interest on investment securities - (3,078)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 1,320,101 3,087,824
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sales of property and equipment and intangible assets 7,993 -
Purchase of property and equipment (31,422) (24,990)
Purchase of intangible assets (15,709) (24,012)
Proceeds from sale of investment securities at amortized cost - 1,221,451
Net cash (used in)/from investing activities (39,138) 1,172,449
Cash flows from financing activities:
Dividends paid - (496,000)
Repayment of lease liabilities 14 (211,211) (227,917)
Proceeds from borrowed funds 14 14,666,097 10,066,256
Repayment of borrowed funds 14 (13,204,355) (13,832,651)
Repayment of debt securities issued (1,400,000) -
Net cash used in financing activities (149,469) (4,490,312)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,131,494 (230,039)
Cash and cash equivalents beginning of the year 5 724,694 704,494
Effect of exchange rate changes on the balance of cash and cash equivalents
held in foreign currencies (306,150) 250,239
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year 5 1,550,038 724,694
Supplementary information:
Interest received 4,061,422 5,106,198
Interest paid (1,159,161) (1,523,227)

During the years ended December 31, 2021 the Organization did not obtain any non-cash settlements for
uncollectible loans to customers in the form of asset repossession (December 31, 2020: AMD 4,886 thousand).

The notes on pages 11-63 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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FINCA UNIVERSAL CREDIT ORGANIZATION CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
(In thousand AMD, unless otherwise stated)

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

FINCA Universal Credit Organization cjsc (the “Organization”) is a closed joint stock Organization - 100%
subsidiary of FINCA Microfinance Codperatief U.A. (Netherlands). The Organization is regulated by the

Central Bank of Armenia (the “CBA”) and conducts its business under license number 13, granted on
28 March 2006.

The Organization is involved in microfinance and provides individual business, consumer and rural loans.
The loans are disbursed both in local and foreign currencies.

The registered office of the Organization is located at 23, Agatangeghos str., Yerevan, Republic of
Armenia.

As at December 31, 2021 the Organization had 30 branches operating in Armenia (December 31, 2020:
39 branches). On January 11, 2021 the Company reorganized the branch network and closed 9 branches
by merging them with the closest branches.

The founder of FINCA UCO CJSC is FINCA International, Inc., a tax-exempt not-for-profit corporation
incorporated and existing under the laws of the state of New York. In 2011 FINCA International, Inc.
transferred 100% of issued shares (136,472 shares) of the Organization to FINCA Microfinance
Codperatief U.A. (a cooperative with exclusion on liability, having its official seat in Amsterdam, the
Netherlands) as a member contribution to the Cooperative.

As of December 31, 2021, the members of the Cooperative were:

1. FINCA MICROFINANCE HOLDING COMPANY LLC, a limited liability company registered under the
laws of the State of Delaware, United States of America and having its registered address at 2711
Centerville Road, Suite 400, Wilmington, Delaware 19808, United States of America. FINCA
MICROFINANCE HOLDING COMPANY LLC holds 99 voting rights as a Member A and 1 voting right as
a Member B of the Cooperative.

2. FINCA INTERNATIONAL LLC, a limited liability company registered under the laws of the State of
Maryland, United States of America and having its registered address at 11 East Chase Street,
Baltimore, Maryland 21202, United States of America. FINCA INTERNATIONAL LLC holds 1% voting
right of the Cooperative.

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020 the following shareholders owned FINCA MICROFINANCE HOLDING
COMPANY LLC:

December 31,2021 December 31,2020

First level shareholders/ holders of the issued share capital:

FINCA International LLC 65.89% 65.89%
International Finance Corporation 14.27% 14.27%
Kfw 8.87% 8.87%
Nederlandse Financierings Maatschappij voor Ontwikkelingslanden N.V. 7.25% 7.25%
ASN-NOVIB FONDS 1.66% 1.66%
Triodos Custody B.V, 1.03% 1.03%
Triodos SICAV Il 1.03% 1.03%
Total 100.00 100.00

11



FINCA UNIVERSAL CREDIT ORGANIZATION CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
(In thousand AMD, unless otherwise stated)

FINCA International Inc. is a not-for-profit corporation under the laws of the United State of America and
as such, its Members hold no ownership in the Organization and have no economic rights. As at
December 31, 2021 the Members of FINCA International, Inc. are as follows: Rupert Scofield, John Hatch,

Robert Hatch and Richard Williamson. FINCA International Inc. produces publicly available financial
statements.

FINCA International Inc. provides low-income people around the world the tools they need to succeed, by
offering responsible financial services, such as small loans or savings accounts; by reaching people in
remote communities using technology like mobile phones and tablets; and by providing access to life-
enhancing products. FINCA operates in communities through affiliated organizations (“affiliates”).

The affiliates are typically separate legal entities that enter into affiliate agreements with FINCA. Small
loans support investment in individual or community productive micro enterprises. Participants build
self-reliance, self-esteem, and a savings fund that remains within the comm unity as a permanent source
of capital for continued investment.

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

New and amended IFRS Standards that are effective for the current year

The following amendments and interpretations are effective for the Organization effective January 1,
2021:

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7,  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2
IFRS 4 and IFRS 16
Amendments to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021

The above standards and interpretations were reviewed by the Organization's management, but did not
have a significant effect on the financial statements of the Organization.

NEW AND REVISED IFRS STANDARDS IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the Organization has not applied the following
new and revised IFRS Standards that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Applicable to annual
reporting periods

New or revised standard or interpretation beginning on or after
IFRS 17 "Insurance contracts” 1 January 2023
Amendments to IFRS 17 "Insurance contracts” 1 January 2023
Amendments to IAS 1 "Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current” (as part of the project to

formulate Annual Improvements to IFRS 2010-2012 cycles). 1 January 2023
Amendments to IAS 8 - "Definition of Accounting Estimates” 1January 2023
Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 — "Disclosure of Accounting Policies” 1 January 2023
Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020:

Amendments to IFRS 3 — “Reference to the Conceptual Framework” 1 January 2022
Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — Revenue Before Intended Use 1 January 2022
Amendments to IAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” — “Loss-making Contracts —

Completion Value” 1 January 2022
Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax Relating to Assets and Liabilities Arising from a Single Transaction 1 January 2023
Amendment to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Date to be determined

Joint Venture by the IASB

12



FINCA UNIVERSAL CREDIT ORGANIZATION CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
(In thousand AMD, unless otherwise stated)

The management does not expect that the adoption of the Standards listed above will have a material
impact on the financial statements of the Organization in future periods.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance. These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).

These financial statements are presented in thousands of Armenian Drams (“AMD thousand”), unless
otherwise indicated.

These financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Organization is a going concern and
will continue operation for the foreseeable future.

Armenian business environment

Emerging markets such as Armenia are subject to different risks than more developed markets, including
economic, political and social, and legal and legislative risks. Laws and regulations affecting businesses in
Armenia continue to change rapidly; tax and regulatory frameworks are subject to varying
interpretations. The future economic direction of Armenia is heavily influenced by the fiscal and
monetary policies adopted by the government, together with developments in the legal, regulatory, and
political environment.

Armenia continues to undergo political and economic changes. As an emerging market, Armenia does not
possess developed business and regulatory infrastructure that generally exists in a more mature free
market economy. In addition, economic conditions continue to limit the volume of activity in the financial
markets, which may not be reflective of the values for financial instruments. The main obstacle to further
economic development is a low level of economic and institutional development, along with a centralized
economic base, regional instability.

Adverse changes arising from systemic risks in global financial systems, including any tightening of the
credit environment could slow or disrupt the Armenian economy, adversely affect the Organization’s
operations, results of operations, financial conditions and prospects. In times of more severe market stress
the Armenian economy and the Organization’s performance may be exposed to deterioration.

COVID-19

Further, starting from early 2020 a new coronavirus disease (COVID-19) has begun rapidly spreading all
over the world resulting in the announcement of the pandemic status by the World Health Organization
in March 2020. Measures put in place by many countries to contain the spread of COVID-19 are resulting
in significant operational disruption for many companies and have significant impact on global financial
markets. As the situation is rapidly evolving it may have a significant effect on business of many
companies across a wide range of sectors, including, but not limited to such impacts as disruption of
business operations as a result of interruption of production or closure of facilities, supply chain
disruptions, quarantines of personnel, reduced demand and difficulties in raising financing. As a result,
the Organization may face increasingly broad effects of COVID-19 as a result of its negative impact on the
global economy and major financial markets.
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The significance of the effect of COVID-19 on the Organization’s business largely depends on the duration
and the incidence of the pandemic effects on the world and Armenian economy. Towards the mid to end
of 2020, the government relaxed certain economic restrictions and business environment limitations
given the path of the pandemic, however their scope may be subject to change in response to the
uncertain future pandemic developments.

Political instability and military actions in the region

In September 2020, the long-standing Nagorno-Karabakh conflict was escalated with the break of
ceasefire regime, which was restored by a treaty signed by the parties involved on 10 November 2020.
Since then, Armenia has been in a political and economic turmoil. A number of protests against the

results of the treaty have led to extraordinary parliamentary elections being announced, which was held
in June 2021.

Further development of the situation may have significant effect on the Organization’s business, its
financial position and performance in the future, which is difficult to predict, given the degree of
uncertainties related to political instability.

Basis of preparation

The Organization maintains its accounting records in accordance with requirements of the Armenian
legislation. The Organization makes adjustments and reclassifications for the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS.

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a lia bility in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of IFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 16, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2 or
value in use in IAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

®  Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability

The Organization presents its statement of financial position in order of liquidity. An analysis regarding
recovery or settlement within 12 months after the reporting date (current) and more than 12 months
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after the reporting date (non-current) is presented in Note 24.

Going Concern

Management prepared these financial statements on a going concern basis, which contemplates the

realization of the Organization’s assets and the settlement of the Organization’s liabilities in the normal
course of business.

The Organization has net profit for the year ended December 31, 2021 amounting AMD 6,996 thousand
(2020: Net loss for the amounting AMD 901,572 thousand).

As at December 31, 2021 the Organization’s was in breach of several covenants attached to the loans
provided by the international financial institutions. The Organization received waivers for all covenant
breaches before December 31, 2021.

Management of the Organization believes that the Organization will be able to continue as a going
concern based on the following:

The Management is in active negotiations with Lenders with the support of Finca Impact Finance Team to
secure the waivers. The Organization has analyzed the cross-default clauses for all agreements with
international lenders. Currently the Organization does not have and does not expect of the lenders to
issue a notice that the breaches constitute an event of default, which is for the other lenders a trigger
point to activate a cross-default clause.

Management of the Organization believes that preparation of the financial statements on the going
concern basis is appropriate due to the followings:

1) Maintaining funding contingency plans and monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios to comply with
regulatory requirements.

2) Asat December 31, 2021 and subsequent to the reporting date, the Organization did not receive any
notices on termination of further funding or notifications with claims of immediate repayment of any
loans from the lenders.

3) Subsequent to the reporting date, the Organization has issue debt securities in the amount of AMD
1,400,000 thousand.

4) Subsequent to the reporting date, the Organization has re-paid loans in accordance with schedules
agreed in agreements without delays.

The management believes that, based on current forecasts and measures taken to manage liquidity,and
also taking into account the economic situation in the country in connection with the COVID-19 pandemic
and the strengthening of the national currency, the Organization has enough funds to continue its
activities in the foreseeable future.

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Organization operates (“the functional currency”). Armenian dram (“AMD”) is
the currency of the RA and the Organization’s functional and presentation currency. All financial
information is presented rounded to the nearest thousands of dram, except when otherwise indicated.
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Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of
financial position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liability
simultaneously. Income and expense is not offset in the statement of comprehensive income unless
required or permitted by any accounting standard or interpretation, and as specifically disclosed in
the accounting policies of the Organization.

The principal accounting policies are set out below. Accounting policies presented herein have been
consistently applied throughout the entire periods presented in these financial statements.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.

The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference between amortized cost in the
functional currency at the beginning of the period, adjusted for effective interest and payments during
the period, and the amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the
reporting period.

Non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are measured based on historical cost are translated using
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency differences arising in retranslation are
recognized in comprehensive income in the month when they arise.

Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis as either finance income or finance cost
depending on whether foreign currency movements are in a net gain or net loss position.

The exchange rates used by the Organization in the preparation of the financial statements as at year-
end are as follows:

Average Rate Spot Rate
2021 2020 December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
AMD/1 US Dollar 503.73 491.65 480.14 522.59
AMD/1 Euro 596.40 559.30 542.61 641.11

Interest income and expense recognition. Interest income and expense for financial instruments are
recognized in ‘Net interest income’ as ‘Interest income’ and ‘Interest expense’ in the profit or loss account
using the effective interest method.

The effective interest rate (EIR) is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows of the
financial instrument through the expected life of the financial instrument or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. The future cash
flows are estimated taking into account all the contractual terms of the instrument.

The calculation of the EIR includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that
are incremental and directly attributable to the specific lending arrangement, transaction costs, and all
other premiums or discounts.

The interest income/interest expense is calculated by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of
non-credit impaired financial assets (i.e. at the amortized cost of the financial asset before adjusting for any
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expected credit loss allowance), or to the amortized cost of financial liabilities. For credit- impaired
financial assets the interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the amortized cost of the credit-

impaired financial assets (i.e. the gross carrying amount less the allowance for expected credit losses
(ECLs)).

Financial instruments

Recognition and initial measurement. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the
Organization’s financial position when the Organization becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, except for trade receivables
that do not have a significant financing component which are measured at transaction price. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Classification and subsequent measurement. |FRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for
financial assets: measured at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
and fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). IFRS 9 classification is generally based on the business model
in which a financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flows.

Financial assets. A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following
conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

e The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated
as at FVTPL:

e The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Organization may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI. This election is
made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets.

On initial recognition, financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortized cost or at FVOCI, the Organization may irrevocably designate such financial asset to be
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measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would
otherwise arise.

Reclassification. Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the
period after the Organization changes its business model for managing financial assets. If the business
model under which the Organization holds financial assets changes, the financial assets affected are
reclassified. The classification and measurement requirements related to the new category apply
prospectively from the first day of the first reporting period following the change in business model that
results in reclassifying the Organization’s financial assets. During the current financial year and previous
accounting period there was no change in the business model under which the Organization holds
financial assets and therefore no reclassifications were made. Changes in contractual cash flows are

considered under the accounting policy on Modification and derecognition of financial assets described
below.

Impairment of financial assets. IFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in IAS 39 with an “expected
credit loss” model. The new impairment model also applies to certain loan commitments and financial

guarantee contracts but not to equity investments. Under IFRS 9, credit losses are recognised earlier than
under IAS 39,

The Organization recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECLs) on the financial assets that
are not measured at FVTPL.

With the exception of purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, ECLs are required
to be measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

® 12-month ECL, i.e. lifetime ECL that result from those default events on the financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date, (referred to as
Stage 1); or

° Full lifetime ECL, i.e. lifetime ECL that result from all possible default events over the life of the
financial instrument, (referred to as Stage 2 and Stage 3).

A loss allowance for full lifetime ECL is required for a financial instrument if the credit risk on that
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. For all other financial
instruments, ECLs are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL.

Loss allowances for other receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of the present value of credit losses. These are measured as the
present value of the difference between the cash flows due to the Organization under the contract and
the cash flows that the Bank expects to receive arising from the weighting of multiple future economic

scenarios, discounted at the asset’s effective interest rate (EIR).

The Organization measures ECL on a collective basis for portfolios of loans that share similar economic
risk characteristics.

More information on measurement of ECLs is provided in note 24, including details on how instruments
are grouped when they are assessed on a collective basis.

The Organization’s financial assets classified into the measurement categories are as following:
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Measurement

Financial assets Category

Business Model SPPI

Hold to collect contractual cash Cash flows are solely payments of
Cash and cash equivalents  flows principal and interest

Derivative financial Cash flows are not solely

Amortized cost

instruments Other business model payments of principal and interest FVTPL (Mandatory)
Hold to collect contractual cash Cash flows are solely payments of

Loans to customers flows principal and interest Amortized cost
Hold to collect contractual cash Cash flows are solely payments of

Investment securities flows principal and interest Amortized cost

Credit-impaired financial assets. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have
a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Credit-
impaired financial assets are referred to as Stage 3 assets. Evidence of credit-impairment includes
observable data about the following events:

Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

A breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

The restructuring of a loan or advance by the Organization on terms that the Organization would not
consider otherwise;

The disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties; or

It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization.

Purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets. POCI financial assets are treated
differently because the asset is credit-impaired at initial recognition. For these assets, the Organization
recognizes all changes in lifetime ECL since initial recognition as a loss allowance with any changes
recognized in profit or loss. A favorable change for such assets creates an impairment gain. The
Organization did not purchase or originate any credit-impaired financial assets during years 2021 and
2020.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position. Loss allowances for ECL are
presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

¢ For financial assets measured at amortized cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the
assets;

e For debt instruments measured at FVOCI: no loss allowance is recognized in the statement of financial
position as the carrying amount is at fair value;

e For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: as a provision; and

e Where a financial instrument includes both a drawn and an undrawn component, and the
Organization cannot identify the ECL on the loan commitment component separately from those on
the drawn component: the Organization presents a combined loss allowance for both components.
The combined amount is presented as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the drawn
component. Any excess of the loss allowance over the gross amount of the drawn component is
presented as a provision.

Modification and derecognition of financial assets. A modification of a financial asset occurs when the
contractual terms governing the cash flows of a financial asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified
between initial recognition and maturity of the financial asset. A modification affects the amount and/or
timing of the contractual cash flows either immediately or at a future date.
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The Organization renegotiates loans to customers in financial difficulty to maximize collection and
minimize the risk of default. Loan terms are modified in cases where although the borrower made all
reasonable efforts to pay under the original contractual terms, there is a high risk of default or default
has already happened and the borrower is expected to be able to meet the revised terms. The revised
terms in most of the cases include an extension of the maturity of the loan, changes to the timing of the
cash flows of the loan (principal and interest repayment), reduction in the amount of cash flows due
(principal and interest forgiveness) and amendments to other terms. When a financial asset is modified,
the Organization assesses whether this modification results in derecognition. In accordance with the
Organization’s policy a modification results in derecognition when it gives rise to substantially different
terms. To determine if the modified terms are substantially different from the original contractual terms
the Organization considers the following:

¢ Quantitative assessment is performed to compare the present value of the remaining contractual cash
flows under the original terms with the contractual cash flows under the revised terms, both amounts
discounted at the original EIR. If the difference in present value is greater than 10% the Organization
deems the arrangement is substantially different leading to derecognition.

¢ Qualitative factors, such as contractual cash flows after modification are no longer SPPI, change
in currency or change of counterparty, the extent of change in interest rates, maturity, covenants.

If the terms are substantially different, the Organization derecognizes the original financial asset and
recognizes a ‘new’ asset at fair value and recalculates a new EIR for the asset. The date of renegotiation is
consequently considered to be the date of initial recognition for impairment calculation purposes,
including for the purpose of determining whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred.

If the terms are not substantially different, the renegotiation or modification does not result in
derecognition, and the Organization recalculates the gross carrying amount based on the revised cash
flows of the financial asset and recognizes a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. The new gross
carrying amount is recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the original EIR (or credit-
adjusted EIR for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets).

The Organization derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the asset’s cash flows
expire (including expiry arising from modification with substantially different terms), or when the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are transferred to
another entity. If the Organization neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Organization recognizes its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Organization retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Organization
continues to recognize the financial asset.

Definition of default. Critical to the determination of ECL is the definition of default. The definition of
default is used in measuring the amount of ECL and in the determination of whether the loss allowance is
based on 12-month or lifetime ECL, as default is a component of the probability of default (PD) which
affects both the measurement of ECLs and the identification of a significant increase in credit risk.

The Organization considers the following as constituting an event of default:

e The contract is past due more than 90 days; or
e The credit obligations reflected in the contract is unlikely to be paid to the Organization in full.
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The definition of default is appropriately tailored to reflect different characteristics of different types of
assets. When assessing if the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligation, the Organization takes into
account both qualitative and quantitative indicators. Quantitative indicators, such as overdue status and
non-payment on another obligation of the same counterparty are key inputs in this analysis. The
Organization uses a variety of sources of information to assess default which are either developed
internally or obtained from external sources.

The following diagram summarizes the impairment requirements under IFRS 9 (other than purchased or
originated credit-impaired financial assets):

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
(Initial recognition) (Significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition) (Credit-impaired assets)
12-month expected credit losses Lifetime expected credit losses Lifetime expected credit losses

Credit-impaired assets in Stage 3 undergo a probationary period of 6 months after the material credit
obligations of the Contract are met before moving to Stage 2.

Significant increase in credit risk. When determining whether the risk of default on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Organization considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Organization’s historical experience
and expert credit assessment and including forward-looking information. The objective of the assessment
is to identify whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred for an exposure by comparing:

e The remaining lifetime PD as at the reporting date; with

¢ The remaining lifetime PD for this point in time that was estimated at the time of initial recognition of
the exposure (adjusted where relevant for changes in prepayment expectations).

The Organization uses three criteria for determining whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk:

e Quantitative test based on movement in PD;
e Forbearance status; and
* A backstop of 30 days past due.

“Forbearance” occurs upon restructuring, i.e. prolongation in payment terms of payment of interest or
principal arising from a deterioration of a borrower’s financial condition such that it is not the same as it
was at the time of loan origination and a borrower has applied for a change in the payment schema of
the loan. Restructuring only occurs when the appropriate division of the bank is reasonably confident
that a borrower is able to service the renewed payment schedule. ‘

During 2020 a number of loans were provided 2 months grace period during the state of emergency
declared in the country and the lockdown imposed related to COVID-19 pandemic outbreak . All those
loans were reclassified to Stage 2, and subsequently after making six consecutive repayments without
any delays were considered as cured and transferred to Stage 1. The gross carrying amount of cured
loans in Stage 1 as of December 31, 2021 is AMD 782,824 thousand of (December 31, 2020: AMD
3,017,218 thousand).
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Multiple economic scenarios form the basis of determining the PD at initial recognition and at
subsequent reporting dates. Different economic scenarios will lead to a different PD. It is the weighting of
these different scenarios that forms the basis of a weighted average PD that is used to determine
whether credit risk has significantly increased. Forward-looking information includes the future prospects
of Armenia’s economy obtained from economic expert reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies,
relevant think-tanks and other similar organizations, as well as consideration of various internal and
external sources of actual and forecast economic information.

Write-off. Financial assets are written off when the Organization has no reasonable expectations of
recovering the financial asset (either in its entirety or a portion of it). This is the case when the
Organization determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. The Organization may apply enforcement activities to financial assets written off.
Recoveries resulting from the Organization’s enforcement activities will result in impairment gains.

The write-off policy is determined by an analysis of recovery curves occurring congruently with IFRS 9
back-testing and model calibration to determine the point at which less than 10% (ten percent) of the
marginal remaining amount of a portfolio can be reasonably expected to be collected, up to a maximum
of 24 months in default (“MID”) for Stage 3 loans.

Three conditions must be considered in the analysis of the recovery curve before any reversion to expert
judgment due to ambiguity in interpretation of the steps below:

1)  The shape of the curve — whether the curve’s acceleration function as defined by time towards the
highest or “ultimate” recovery rate is monotone (i.e. “gradual”) or rapid (i.e. “steep”);

2) The scale of the ultimate recovery rate — ranging between 0% to 100%, whether the magnitude of
recovery rate is large or small; and

3) Adoption of an absolute or relative application of the 10% criteria noted in the preceding paragraph
— whether after consideration of the condition no. 1 and 2 above, evidence of a monotone and large
scale requires application of a write-off criteria of the ultimate recovery rate less 10% (i.e. the
absolute application) or a rapid and small scale requires application of a criteria of the ultimate rate
multiplied by 0.9.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL,

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains/losses arising on remeasurement
recognized in profit or loss to the extent that they are not part of a designated hedging relationship.

The net gain/loss recognized in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is
included in the ‘Net gain/(loss) on other financial instruments at FVTPL’ line item in the profit or loss
account.

Other financial liabilities, Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, debt securities issued are
initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. For details on EIR see the "net interest income
section" below.
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Derecognition of financial liabilities. The Organization derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Organization’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is
recognized in profit or loss.

Considering qualitative factors, quantitative factors and combined effect of qualitative and quantitative
factors. The Bank concludes that the modification is substantial as a result of the following qualitative
factors:

Change the currency of the financial liability;
Change in collateral or other credit enhancement;
Inclusion of conversion option;

Change in the subordination of the financial liability.

For the quantitative assessment the terms are substantially different if the discounted present value of
the cash flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received and discounted
using the original effective interest rate, is at least 10 per cent different from the discounted present
value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial liability.

If the modification is not substantial, the difference between: (1) the carrying amount of the liability
before the modification; and (2) the present value of the cash flows after modification should be
recognized in profit or loss as the modification gain or loss within other gains and losses.

Derivative financial instruments. The Organization enters into a variety of derivative financial
instruments some of which are held for trading while others are held to manage its exposure to interest
rate risk; credit risk; and foreign exchange rate risk. Derivative held include foreign exchange forward
contracts, interest rate swaps, cross currency interest rate swaps and credit default swaps.

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at each balance sheet date. The resulting gain/loss is
recognized in profit or loss immediately.

A derivative with a positive fair value is recognized as a financial asset whereas a derivative with

a negative fair value is recognized as a financial liability. A derivative is presented as a non-current asset
or a non-current liability if the remaining maturity of the instrument is more than 12 months and it is not
expected to be realized or settled within 12 months. Other derivatives are presented as current assets or
current liabilities.

Net interest income. Interest income and expense for all financial instruments except for those classified
as held for trading or those measured or designated as at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) are
recognized in ‘Net interest income’ as ‘Interest income’ and ‘Interest expense’ in the profit or loss
account using the effective interest method. Interest on financial instruments measured as at FVTPL is
included within the fair value movement during the period, see ‘Net gain/(loss) on trading assets and
other financial assets measured at FVTPL and trading liabilities’ and ‘Net gain/(loss) on other financial
instruments at FVTPL'.

The calculation of the EIR includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract
that are incremental and directly attributable to the specific lending arrangement, transaction costs, and
all other premiums or discounts. For financial assets at FVTPL transaction costs are recognized in profit or
loss at initial recognition.
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Fee and commission income/expense. Fee and commission income and expense include fees other than
those that are an integral part of EIR (see above). The fees included in this part of the Organization’s
statement of profit or loss include among other things fees charged for servicing a loan, non-utilization

fees relating to loan commitments when it is unlikely that these will result in a specific lending
arrangement and loan syndication fees.

Fee and commission expenses with regards to services are accounted for as the services are received.

In making the determination of whether recognizing changes in the liability’s credit risk in OCI will create
or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, the Organization assesses whether it expects that
the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk will be offset in profit or loss by a change in the fair

value of another financial instrument measured at FVTPL. This determination is made at initial
recognition.

Equity instruments. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Organization are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Organization’s own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity.
No gain/loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Organization’s own equity instruments.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and amounts due from credit institutions with original
maturity of less or equal to 90 days and are free from contractual encumbrances.

Property and equipment. Property and equipment is carried at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and any recognized impairment loss, if any.

Depreciation is charged on the carrying value of property and equipment and is designed to write off
assets over their useful economic lives. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis at the following
useful lives:

- Communication devices and computers — 3 years;
- Office equipment — 5 years;
- Vehicles — 5 years;
- Other — 5 years.

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless
it is reasonably certain that the Organization will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term or renew
the lease term.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss.
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Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately. Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. The
useful lives of software is determined 20 years and for licensees 4 years. Amortization is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortization method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and development expenditure. Expenditure on research
activities is recognized as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of
an internal project) is recognized if, and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

e The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale;
e  The intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

° The ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

° How the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;

e The availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development
and to use or sell the intangible asset; and

e  The ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognized for internally-generated intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure
incurred from the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where
no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognized, development expenditure is recognized in
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible assets are reported at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets
that are acquired separately.

Derecognition of intangible assets. An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset, are recognized in profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill. At the end of each reporting period,
the Organization reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss
(if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,

the Organization estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its ca rrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease and to the

extent that the impairment loss is greater than the related revaluation surplus, the excess impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount,

in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Taxation. Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax. The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit before tax
as reported in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because of items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Organization’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

A provision is recognised for those matters for which the tax determination is uncertain but it is
considered probable that there will be a future outflow of funds to a tax authority. The provisions are
measured at the best estimate of the amount expected to become payable. The assessment is based on
the judgement of tax professionals within the Company supported by previous experience in respect of
such activities and in certain cases based on specialist independent tax advice.

Deferred tax. Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in

a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Organization is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
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reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part

of the asset to be recovered. Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Organization expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year. Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,

in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for
a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination.

Provisions. Provisions are recognised when the Organization has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Organization will be required to settle
the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle

the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle

the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect

of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will
be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Contingencies. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the statement of financial position but are
disclosed unless the possibility of any outflow in settlement is remote. A contingent asset is not
recognised in the statement of financial position but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.

Collateral. The Organization obtains collateral in respect of customer liabilities where this is considered
appropriate. The collateral normally takes the form of a lien over the customer’s assets and gives
the Organization a claim on these assets for both existing and future customer liabilities.

Segment reporting. An operating segment is a component of the Organization that engages in business
activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and expenses relating
to transactions with other components of the Bank); whose operating results are regularly reviewed by
the chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and
assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

The Organization’s operations are highly integrated and constitute a single business segment for the
purposes of IFRS 8 Operating Segments. Management does not review separately the operating results of
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any of the components of the Bank. Assets are concentrated primarily in the Republic of Armenia, and
the majority of revenues and profit is derived from operations in, and connected with, the Republic of
Armenia. The Chief Operating Decision Maker, in the case of the Organization, the Board of Directors,
only receives and reviews the information on the Organization as a whole. The Organization’s IFRS
operating results such as interest income, net interest income and net profit are regularly reviewed by
the Board of Directors to make decisions about the types of the Organization’s reportable segments in
order to assess its performance and future resources allocation.

In the application of the Organization’s accounting policies the Organization management is required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that

period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Organization’s accounting policies the Organization management is required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involve a higher degree of judgment or complexity, and
major sources of estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment
within the next financial year. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgments is
included in the related notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected
line item in the financial statements.

Measurement of the expected credit loss allowance. The measurement of the ECL allowance for
financial assets measured at amortized cost and FVOCI is an area that requires the use of complex models
and significant assumptions about future economic conditions and credit behavior (e.g., the likelihood of
customers defaulting and the resulting losses).

A number of significant judgments are also required in applying the accounting requirements for
measuring ECL, such as:

- Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;

- Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for the measurement of ECL;

- Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of
product/market and the associated ECL; and

- Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of measuring ECL.
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Measurement of CBA provision. The measurement of the provision of CBA is based on the application of
the following terms and regulations:

- For 2020 AMD 240,000 thousand provision was booked based on the CBA inspection act:

- in relation to violation of the Art. 13 (1) of the RA Law “On Consumer Credits”, for the loans issued
during the period from January 1, 2018 until July 20, 2020 taking for basis 365 days instead of 360
days; and

- in relation to the violation of Art. 10 (2) of the RA Law “On Consumer Credits” and clause 86 (3) of

the regulation 8/05 for loans issued during the period from January 1, 2018 until December 31,
2020.

There was uncertainty in relation to the period applied for the calculation of the provision. During the
year 2021 the CBA provision was recalculated to the amount of AMD 113,500 thousand as per additional
clarification from the CBA instructing to apply recalculation of the provision for the violation of Art. 10 (2)
of the RA Law “On Consumer Credits” and clause 86 (3) of the regulation 8/05 for loans issued during the
period from 16 August 2019. As a result an income of AMD 126,500 thousand was booked.

5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

December 31, December 31,
2021 2020
Cash on hand 605,699 190,628
Correspondent accounts 944,339 534,066
1,550,038 724,694
Less: expected credit losses (51) (7)
Total cash and cash equivalent 1,549,987 724,687

A reconciliation of the Expected credit loss allowance by stages in accordance with IFRS 9 is as follows:

Stage 1 Total
Expected credit losses at January 1, 2020 899 899
Recovery of provision (892) (892)
Expected credit losses at December 31, 2020 7 7
Provision charge A4 44
Expected credit losses at December 31, 2021 51 51

As at December 31, 2021 correspondent accounts are held with resident commercial banks, with 81.7% of
the balance held at three resident commercial banks. As at December 31, 2020 the Organization has 81.8%
of the balance held in three financial institution.
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6. LOANS TO CUSTOMERS

December 31, December 31,
2021 2020
Loans customers at amortized cost 23,117,991 24,298,801
Less: Expected credit losses (4,870,267) (4,488,569)
Total loans to customers 18,247,724 19,810,232
Loans to customers comprise:
December 31, 2021
Expected credit Expected credit losses
Gross loans losses Net loans on gross loans, %
Individual rural loans 12,556,617 (2,520,618) 10,035,999 20.1%
Individual business loans 6,886,862 (1,184,909) 5,701,953 17.2%
Consumer loans 3,674,512 (1,164,740) 2,509,772 31.7%
Total loans to customers 23,117,991 (4,870,267) 18,247,724 21.1%
December 31, 2020
Expected credit Expected credit losses
Gross loans losses Net loans on gross loans, %
Individual rural loans 13,159,094 (2,140,871) 11,018,223 16.3%
Individual business loans 6,792,891 (1,336,288) 5,456,603 19.7%
Consumer loans 4,346,816 (1,011,410) 3,335,406 23.3%
Total loans to customers 24,298,801 (4,488,569) 19,810,232 18.5%

The balances as at reporting date represent the remaining balances of the respective product portfolio.
Loans to customers per industry groups are presented below:

December 31, 2021

December 31, 2020

Gross loan Gross loan Gross loan Gross loan

portfolio portfolio, % portfolio portfolio, %
Agriculture 12,922,509 55.90% 13,695,466 56.36%
Service 4,158,855 17.99% 4,791,741 19.72%
Trade 3,761,204 16.27% 3,184,063 13.10%
Production 786,060 3.40% 849,593 3.50%
Transport 660,728 2.86% 769,154 3.17%
Construction 49,012 0.21% 90,927 0.37%
Other 779,623 3.37% 917,857 3.78%
Gross loans to customers 23,117,991 100.00% 24,298,801 100.00%
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The analysis of changes for loan expected credit losses is presented in the table below:

Service

Agriculture Trade Production Transport Construction Other Total
January 1, 2020 1,068,409 434,597 110,747 82,388 53,621 469,815 118,910 2,338,487
Provision charge 1,432,385 154,083 46,910 98,318 17,136 876,630 28,051 2,653,513
Recovery
previously
written-off loans 147,782 88,461 28,113 9,996 9,790 10,199 94,466 388,807
Write-off of
loans to
customers (520,008) (186,216) (56,379) (50,011) (34,204)  (169,008) (160,155)  (1,175,981)
Interest income
adjustment on
Stage 3 loans 62,719 21,967 2,661 2,749 1,198 37,866 498 129,658
Foreign exchange
lifferences 75,269 21,878 5,606 5,215 2,336 38,781 5,000 154,085
December 31,
2020 2,266,556 534,770 137,658 148,655 49,877 1,264,283 86,770 4,488,569
Provision
charge/(recovery) 969,856 25,557 (680) 33,279 20,961 257,357 209,992 1,516,322
Recovery
previously
written-off loans 122,876 91,369 25,278 16,079 8,578 25,437 91,903 380,720
Write-off of loans
to customers (695,016)  (168,514) (50,781) (49,379)  (44,092)  (335,026) (214,099)  (1,556,907)
Interest income
adjustment on
Stage 3 loans 126,650 23,035 5,700 6,343 325 54,150 4,642 220,845
Foreign exchange
differences (134,963) (24,202) (4,102) (8,146) (193) (4,384) (3,292) (179,282)
December 31,
2021 2,655,959 482,015 113,073 146,831 35,456 1,261,817 175,116 4,870,267

Analysis of collateral and other credit enhancements

The Organization closely monitors collateral held for financial assets considered to be credit-impaired, as
it becomes more likely that the Organization will take possession of collateral to mitigate potential credit
losses. At December 31, 2021 and 2020 financial assets and related collateral held in order to mitigate

potential losses are shown below:

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
Loans collateralised by movable property 1,841,191 2,272,897
Loans collateralised by non-movable property 5,162,961 3,881,761
Total secured loans 7,004,152 6,154,658
Unsecured loans — express loans 13,783,043 16,331,179
Total unsecured loans 13,783,043 16,331,179
Total loans 20,787,195 22,485,837
Accrued interest receivable 2,158,436 1,557,950
Unamortized origination and service fees, net 172,360 255,014
Less - Allowance for expected credit losses (4,870,267) (4,488,569)
Loans to customers 18,247,724 19,810,232
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As at December 31, 2021 and 2020 all loans to customers (100% of total portfolio) are granted to

individuals and companies operating in Republic of Armenia, which represents a significant geographical
concentration in one region.

For other disclosures on loans to customers (staging and etc.) see note 24.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Communication

Leasehold devices and Office

improvements computers equipment Vehicles Other Total
At cost
January 1, 2020 334,516 498,945 336,557 77,826 216,044 1,463,888
Additions 7,965 8,352 4,854 - 3,819 24,990
Write off (57,045) - . - = (57,045)
December 31, 2020 285,436 507,297 341,411 77,826 219,863 1,431,833
Additions 4,053 21,335 3,055 1,248 1,731 31,422
Write off (16,515) . (15,092) (16,000) (3,165) (50,772)
Transfers between PPE
subcategories (865) 92 68 - 705 -
December 31, 2021 272,109 528,724 329,442 63,074 219,134 1,412,483
Accumulated
depreciation
January 1, 2020 250,968 342,109 304,607 77,561 205,139 1,180,384
Depreciation charge 26,181 64,655 14,578 116 7,617 113,147
Write off (40,426) - - - - (40,426)
December 31, 2020 236,723 406,764 319,185 77,677 212,756 1,253,105
Depreciation charge 18,743 51,540 10,303 547 4,801 85,934
Write off (13,954) - (13,648) (16,000) (3,084) (46,686)
Transfers between
PPE subcategories (756) 151 9 - 596 -
December 31, 2021 240,756 458,455 315,849 62,224 215,069 1,292,353
Net book value
As at December 31,
2021 31,353 70,269 13,593 850 4,065 120,130
As at December 31,
2020 48,713 100,533 22,226 149 7,107 178,728

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the cost of fully depreciated assets that are still in use comprised AMD
902,034 thousand and AMD 889,537 thousand respectively.

The Organization did not have any pledged property and equipment as at December 31, 2021 and 2020.
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8.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Total

At cost

January 1, 2020 623,148
Additions 24,012
December 31, 2020 647,160
Additions 15,709
December 31, 2021 662,869
Accumulated amortization

January 1, 2020 290,679
Amortization charge 102,890
December 31, 2020 393,569
Amortization charge 70,292
December 31, 2021 463,861
Net book value
As at December 31, 2021 199,008
As at December 31, 2020 253,591
Intangible assets mainly consist of software

RIGHT OF USE ASSETS

Right-of-use assets Buildings Total

Cost

As at January 1, 2020 976,174 976,174
Additions 147,809 147,809
Lease terminations (258,647) (258,647)
31 December 2020 865,336 865,336
Additions 244,528 244,528
Lease terminations (101,896) (101,896)
As at December 31, 2021 1,007,968 1,007,968
Accumulated depreciation

As at January 1, 2020 259,360 259,360
Charge for the year 252,023 252,023
Lease terminations (93,959) (93,959)
31 December 2020 417,424 417,424
Charge for the year 211,393 211,393
Lease terminations (61,038) (61,038)
As at December 31, 2021 567,779 567,779
Carrying amount
As at December 31, 2020 447,912 447,912
As at December 31, 2021 440,189 440,189

The Organization leases several buildings. The average lease term is 5 years.

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is presented in note 24.
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10.

December 31, December 31,
2021 2020
Amounts recognised in profit and loss
Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets 211,393 252,023
Interest expense on lease liabilities 63,361 85,483
Gain from lease concession 646 11,854
Gain from lease termination 4,032 15,336
The total cash outflow for leases amount to AMD 274,572 thousand.
Lease Liability
December 31, December 31,
2021 2020
Maturity analysis:
Year 1 205,567 257,238
Year 2 165,514 170,161
Year 3 118,654 100,694
Year 4 75,188 57,373
Year5 37,831 23,979
Year 6 9,120 9,420
Year 7 6,080 7,134
617,954 625,999
Less: unearned interest (117,941) (115,235)
500,013 510,764
Analyzed as:
Non-current 345,720 305,322
Current 154,923 205,442
500,013 510,764
Lease liability movements are presented in note 14.
OTHER ASSETS
December 31, December 31,
2021 2020
Other financial assets
Account receivable for money transfer systems 17,683 16,251
Other receivables 659 1,759
Total other financial assets 18,342 18,010
Other non-financial assets
Repossessed assets 20,109 19,569
Prepaid taxes (other than profit tax) and other liabilities to the budget 19,886 22,275
Prepayments for the goods and services 13,148 14,142
Inventory 11,827 8,735
Other 1,071 1,023
Total other assets 84,383 83,754
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11. DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED

12.

Date of Maturity date  Annual coupon/  December 31, December 31,
(o4 4 issue month/year interest rate % 2021 2020

Debt securities issued AMD 24/04/19 26/09/22 10.5 1,541,043 1,540,672
Debt securities issued AMD 26/04/19 26/04/22 10.5 1,018,764 1,018,170
Debt securities issued usb 25/02/19 25/02/22 6 980,254 1,066,500
Debt securities issued AMD 18/12/18 20/12/21 10.5 - 1,405,265
Total debt securities

issued 3,540,061 5,030,607

During 2019 year there were four issuance of the debt securities on the nominal amounts of AMD
1,500,000 thousand, AMD 1,400,000 thousand, AMD 1,000,000 thousand and USD 2,000 thousand in
accordance with the table above.

OTHER BORROWED FUNDS

Weighted Weighted

average average
nominal December 31, nominal December 31,
interest rate 2021 interest rate 2020

International financial institutions 7.20% 5,353,928 8.20% 5,187,236
Central Bank of Armenia 6.30% 3,092,140 6.40% 85,192
Other financial institutions 11.10% 1,102,201 9.60% 2,355,245
FINCA Microfinance Holding 6.40% 887,177 6.70% 1,934,683
Total other borrowed funds 10,435,446 9,562,356

As at December 31, 2021 the Organization has borrowings from five financial institutions (December 31
2020: seven financial institutions) whose balances each exceed 10% of equity. The value of these
balances as at December 31, 2021 is AMD 6,485,344 thousand (December 31 2020: AMD 8,874,137
thousand).

On June 28, 2021 the Organization has concluded loan agreement with the Central Bank of Armenia
under the framework of “MSME Support” Program between the Central Bank of Armenia and KfW bank
of the Federal Republic of Germany. The administration of the loan is conducted by the German
Armenian Fund Project Management Unit (PMU GAF). The lending within the Program is based on
refinancing principles, which means that the Organization first provides loans out of their own funds, and
afterwards apply to PMU GAF for refinancing. If the provided loans comply with the Program
requirements, the Central Bank of Armenia refinances those loans. The loans are provided in local
currency only and for the period of five years. There are a number of financial institutions in the Republic
of Armenia who participate in the Program and are bound to the same terms and conditions. The interest
rate is being determined by the Advisory council twice a year, based on the refinancing rate set by the
Central Bank and the average yield of 5 year Government Bonds, as well as the overall trend of the SME
loans pricing in the market. At the same time, the Advisory Council sets the maximum effective interest
rate that can be charged from the clients under the GAF Program loans. As at December 31, 2021 the
outstanding balance of loans under “MSME Support” program was AMD 1,578,287 thousand (no balance
as at December 31, 2020).
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On May 20, 2021 the Organization has concluded loan agreement with the Central Bank of Armenia
under the framework of «Agricultural Sector Support” Program (third stage) between the Central Bank of
Armenia and KfW bank of the Federal Republic of Germany. The administration of the loan is conducted
by the German Armenian Fund Project Management Unit (PMU GAF). The lending within the Program is
based on refinancing principles, which means that the Organization first provides loans out of their own
funds, and afterwards apply to PMU GAF for refinancing. If the provided loans comply with the Program
requirements, the Central Bank of Armenia refinances those loans. The loans are provided in local
currency only and for the period of five years. There are a number of financial institutions in the Republic
of Armenia who participate in the Program and are bound to the same terms and conditions. The interest
rate is being determined by the Advisory council twice a year, based on the refinancing rate set by the
Central Bank, as well as the overall trend of the agricultural loans pricing in the market. At the same time,
the Advisory Council sets the maximum effective interest rate that can be charged from the clients under
the GAF Program loans. As at December 31, 2021 the outstanding balance of loans under “Agricultural
Sector Support” program was AMD 1,467,979 thousand(no balance as at December 31, 2020).

Management of the Organization believes that there are no other financial instruments similar to the
other borrowed funds received from CBA and due to the specific nature of clients and conditions of the
lending, availability of the funds to other participants such as other commercial banks, these products
represent a separate market. As a result, other borrowed funds from the CBA were received in an orderly
transaction and as such have been recorded at fair value at the initial recognition date.

The Organization is obligated to comply with financial covenants in relation to other borrowed funds.

These covenants include stipulated ratios, debt to equity ratios and various other financial performance
ratios.

As at December 31, 2021, the Organization breached certain financial covenants required by some of its
borrowing agreements with international financial institutions and FINCA Microfinance Holding relating
to the portfolio quality and the positive profitability. The borrowed amounts as at reporting date, in
respect of which the covenant breach had taken place, amounted to AMD 2,563,885 thousand.

The Organization has obtained waivers from the lenders before the 2021 year end and for the purposes
of the Organization’s liquidity position analysis as at December 31, 2021, the Organization haven’t made
any reclassifications for the borrowings as these loans will be repaid according to their contractual terms.

As at December 31, 2020 the Organization includes all the borrowings from international financial
institutions as on demand as according to agreements with international institutions there are cross
default clauses, see Note 24.

These liabilities are measured at amortised cost.

Other borrowed funds are to be repaid as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2021 2020
Year 1 5,335,769 8,577,753
Year 2 1,973,572 962,220
Year 3 1,568,625 17,858
Year 4 774,097 3,016
Year 5 783,383 1,509
10,435,446 9,562,356
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13. OTHER LIABILITIES

December 31, December 31,
2021 2020

Other financial liabilities:
CBA provision 34,125 240,000
Payables for services 31,026 12,499
Other 13,351 -
Provision for business reorganization - 39,890

78,502 292,389
Other non-financial liabilities:
Unused vacation reserve 93,911 164,624
Taxes payable, other than income tax 75,207 94,850
Other 31,764 20,546
Total other liabilities 279,384 572,409
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15,

16.

17,

EQUITY

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020 Organization’s registered, issued, outstanding and fully paid share
capital consisted of 490,596 ordinary shares respectively with par value of AMD 10,000 each. The holders
of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one
vote per share at the annual and general meetings of the Organization.

The share capital of the Organization was contributed by the shareholders in AMD and they are entitled
to dividends and any capital distribution in AMD.

The Organization’s distributable reserves among shareholders are limited to the amount of its
accumulated retained earnings as disclosed in its statutory accounts. Non-distributable reserves are
represented by a reserve fund, which is created as required by the statutory regulations. The reserve
fund of the Organization is formed by compulsory annual deductions in the amount of 5% equivalent to

2020: AMD 46,202 thousand from net IFRS profits of the Organization until the fund reaches 15% of its
Share capital.

NET INTEREST INCOME

2021 2020

Interest income

- Loans to customers 5,320,815 6,405,799
- Investment securities at amortized cost - 76,989
- Cash and cash equivalents 23,984 17,039
Total interest income 3 5,344,799 6,499,827
Interest expense

- Other borrowed funds (749,200) (959,147)
- Debt securities issued (466,541) (470,962)
- Lease liability (63,361) (85,483)
- Repurchase agreements - (20,622)
Total interest expense (1,279,102) (1,536,214)
Net interest income before impairment losses on interest bearing assets 4,065,697 4,963,613

The penalties are calculated on the accrual basis and are included on overdue principle and interest
amounts. In 2021 the amount is AMD 1,031,403 thousand (2020: the amount is AMD 532,403 thousand).
As the main part of overdue amounts are loans in stage 3, there is ECL calculated over the penalty
accrued as of December 31, 2021 in the amount of AMD 831,831 thousand (2020: AMD 412,765
thousand).

NET GAIN FROM FOREIGN EXCHANGE OPERATIONS

2021 2020
Gain from foreign exchange trading, net 160,679 127,164
Foreign exchange translation loss, net (87,904) (37,764)
ﬁ;tal net gain from foreign exchange operation; - gy “'"'}'2,775 89,400
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18. NET OTHER GAIN/(LOSS)
2021 2020
CBA provision gain/(loss) (Note 13) 126,500 (240,000)
Income from sale of PPE 8,084 -
Gain from lease termination 4,032 15,336
Gain from lease concession 646 11,854
Income from grant 2 7,749
Write-off of leasehold improvements (4,177) (16,619)
Expense related to reorganization - (55,699)
Penalty on early repayment of the loan - (20,319)
Other 26,805 24,725
NET OTHER GAIN/(LOSS) 161,890 (272,973)
19. INCOME TAXES

The Organization measures and records its current income tax payable and its tax bases in its assets and
liabilities in accordance with the tax regulations of the Republic of Armenia where the Organization
operates, which may differ from IFRS.

The Organization is subject to certain permanent tax differences due to the non-tax deductibility of
certain expenses and certain income being treated as non-taxable for tax purposes.

Deferred taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes. Temporary
differences as at December 31, 2021 and 2020 relate mostly to different methods/timing of income and
expense recognition as well as to temporary differences generated by tax — book bases’ differences for
certain assets.

The tax rate used for the reconciliations below is the corporate tax rate of 18% payable by corporate
entities in the Republic of Armenia on taxable profits (as defined) under tax law in that jurisdiction.

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) as at December 31, 2021 and 2020 comprise:

December 31, December 31,
2021 2020

Deferred tax liabilities in relation to:

Loans to customers (511,595) (163,499)
Property and equipment 26,685 26,913
Leases 8,249 11,125
Other assets - (1,100)
Borrowed funds - 4,066
Tax losses carry-forward 316,787 -
Other liabilities 56,832 89,173
Net deferred tax liability (103,042) (33,322)

As per tax legislation of the Republic of Armenia the tax loss may be carried forward for 5 year, The
management expects to utilize the tax loss within the next 2-3 years.

The deferred tax liability increased during year 2021 as a result of increased provisioning per regulatory
requirements which is being used for determining the carrying amount of loans to customers for tax
purposes. The provisioning per regulatory requirement is based on both objective and subjective criteria.
Per subjective criteria, information on the performance of loans in other financial institutions is being
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20.

used taking the stricter classification for provisioning. During the COVID19 pandemic outbreak as well as
subsequent conflict on the border the report on the credit history of clients in other financial institutions
was not available and only objective criteria (number of overdue days in the Organization) was used for
the regulatory provisioning. The report was first time available in April 2021 after one year period,

resulting in significant increase in the subjective provisioning.

The effective tax rate reconciliation is as follows for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020:

2021 2020
Profit/(loss) before income tax 76,716 (1,050,090)
Tax at the statutory tax rate (18%) 13,809 (189,016)
Tax effect of permanent differences 55,911 17,887
Prior years related current tax expense . 22,611
Income tax expense /(benefit) 69,720 (148,518)
Current income tax expense - 48,244
Current income tax expense — prior years - 22,611
Deferred tax expense/(benefit) recognized in the current year 69,720 (219,373)
Income tax expense /(benefit) 69,720 (148,518)
Deferred income tax liabilities 2021 2020
As at January 1 — deferred tax liabilities (33,322) (252,695)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences recognized in profit or loss (69,720) 219,373
As at December 31 - deferred tax liabilities (103,042) (33,322)
OPERATING EXPENSES
2021 2020
Royalty (116,542) (154,882)
Information technology expenses (165,918) (150,379)
Taxes, other than income tax (157,167) (75,129)
Professional services (73,704) (78,706)
Insurance (70,351) (67,841)
Communications (51,269) (56,777)
Property and equipment maintenance (48,636) (8,838)
Utilities (32,332) (38,641)
Bank charges (27,551) (15,624)
Office supplies (20,379) (41,018)
Security expenses (19,158) (23,406)
Representative expenses (17,985) (1,005)
Cash collector’s service expenses (16,802) (10,671)
Financial system mediator expenses (14,667) (18,020)
Advertising costs (12,480) (8,702)
Business trip expense (8,813) (8,983)
Training costs (580) (3,011)
Other expenses (39,985) (50,458)
Total operating expenses (894,319) (812,091)

Royalty is being paid as percentage of operating income and may vary from 1.5%-2% depending on the

size of the operating income. Withholding tax is being paid on it.
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21. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

22.

21.1. Capital commitments

The Organization had no capital commitments as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

21.2.Legal proceedings

From time to time and in the normal course of business, claims against the Organization are received from
customers and counterparties. Management is of the opinion that no material non-accrued losses will be
incurred and accordingly no provision has been made in these financial statements.

21.3.Taxation

Commercial legislation of the Republic of Armenia, including tax legislation, may allow more than one
interpretation. In addition, there is a risk of tax authorities making arbitrary judgments of business
activities. If a particular treatment, based on management’s judgment of the Organization’s business
activities, was to be challenged by the tax authorities, the Organization may be assessed additional taxes,

penalties and interest. Generally, taxpayers are subject to tax audits with respect to three calendar years
preceding the year of the audit.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

IFRS defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

22.1.Fair value of the Organization’s financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value
on a recurring basis

Some of the Organization’s financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. The following table gives information about how the fair values of these
financial assets and financial liabilities are determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) and
inputs used).

Fair value as at

Relationship of
Significant unobservable
Financial assets/  December 31, December 31, Fairvalue Valuation technique(s) unobservable inputs to
Liahilities 2021 2020 hierarchy and key input(s) input(s) fair value
Discounted cash flows,
Future cash flows are
estimated
based on forward
exchange rates
and contract forward

Financial assets at fair rates,
value through discounted at a rate that
profit or loss: reflects the credit risk of
- currency swaps 1,885 152 Level 2 various counterparties N/A N/A
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22.2. Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value
on a recurring basis (but fair value disclosures are required)

Because of the short-term nature of most financial assets and financial liabilities, management believes
that their carrying amounts approximate their fair values. For certain other financial assets and financial
liabilities, management uses discounted cash flows to estimate fair values. Interest rates used to discount
these estimated cash flows are based on the government bond yield curve at the reporting date plus
currency, maturity of the instrument and credit risk of the counterparty.

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value

Financial Assets

- Loans to customers 18,247,724 17,734,421 19,810,232 20,012,388
Financial Liabilities

- Debt securities issued 3,540,061 3,547,256 5,030,607 5,135,286
- Other borrowed funds 10,435,446 10,395,842 9,562,356 9,536,981
- Lease liabilities 500,013 495,945 510,764 506,813

The following methods and assumptions are used by the Bank to estimate the fair value of financial
instruments not carried at fair value.

Loans to customers

The estimate was made by discounting the scheduled future cash flows of the loans through the
estimated maturity using market rates in micro finance segment, where company operates, as at the
respective year-end. The estimated fair value of Loans to customers is categorised into Level 3 category
as the fair values have been calculated based on the unobservable inputs.

Other borrowed funds

The estimate was made by discounting the scheduled future cash flows of the other borrowed funds
through the estimated maturity using market rates as at the respective year-end. The estimated fair
value of Borrowed funds is categorised into Level 3 category as the fair values have been calculated
based on the unobservable inputs.

Debt securities issued

The estimate was made by discounting the scheduled future cash flows of the debt securities issued
through the estimated maturity using market quoted prices as at respective year-end. The estimated fair
value of Debt securities issued is categorised into Level 2 category as the fair values have been calculated
based on the observable inputs (quoted prices are available publicly on Armenian Securities Exchange
web site)

Lease liabilities

The estimate was made by discounting the scheduled future cash flows of lease lia bilities through the
estimated maturity using market rates as at the respective year-end. The estimated fair value of lease
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23.

liabilities is categorised into Level 3 category as the fair values have been calculated based on the

unobservable inputs.

December 31, 2021

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
Loans to customers - 17,734,421 17,734,421
Financial Liabilities
Debt securities issued 3,547,256 - 3,547,256
Other borrowed funds 10,395,842 10,395,842
Lease liabilities - 495,945 495,945

December 31, 2020

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
Loans to customers 20,012,388 20,012,388
Investment securities - -
Financial Liabilities
Debt securities issued 5,135,286 - 5,135,286
Other borrowed funds 9,536,981 9,536,981
Lease liabilities - 506,813 506,813

The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities included in the level 2 and level 3 categories
above have been determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on

a discounted cash flow analysis, with the most significant inputs being the discount rate that reflects
the credit risk of counterparties. There hadn’t been a transfer between different levels of the fair value
hierarchy.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Organization manages its capital to ensure that the Organization will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximizing the return to stakeholders through the optimization of the debt and equity
balance.

The CBA sets and monitors capital requirements for the Organization. Under the current capital
requirements set by the CBA, universal credit organizations as at December 31, 2021 have to maintain a
minimum share capital of AMD 150,000 thousand (December 31, 2020: AMD 150,000 thousand).

As per CBA regulatory requirement, which became effective in 2011, credit organizations conducting
foreign exchange transactions in cash other than for the purpose of accepting loan repayments; have to
maintain a ratio of capital to risk weighted assets (statutory capital ratio) above the prescribed minimum
level. In 2013 the Organization changed its charter so that it has the right to conduct foreign exchange
cash transactions as a separate activity, thus the Organization has to measure and comply with this
statutory capital requirements and capital ratio. As at December 31, 2021, total capital requirements was
AMD 1,000,000 thousand (December 31, 2020: AMD 1,000,000 thousand) and minimum capital ratio level
was 12% (December 31, 2020:12%).

The calculation of statutory capital ratio based on requirements set by the Central Bank of Armenia is as
follows:
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24,

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Unaudited Unaudited
Primary capital 3,077,369 5,714,480
Total primary capital 3,077,369 5,714,480
Risk weighted assets 16,765,787 21,141,652
Statutory capital ratio (%) 18.36% 27.03%
Minimum required statutory capital ratios 12.00% 12.00%
Compliance with the minimum share capital and total capital No breaches No breaches
requirements as at December 31,2021  as at December 31, 2020

The Management Board reviews the capital structure on a semi-annual basis. The adequacy of the
Organization’s capital is set and monitored using the ratios established by CBA. As a part of this review,
the Board considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the Board, the Organization balances its overall capital structure through payment
of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redem ption of existing debt. In
addition, the Organization manages its capital in order to meet covenant requirements.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

Management of risk is fundamental to the Organization’s business and is an essential element
of the Organization’s operations. The main risks inherent to the Organization’s operations are those
related to;

° Credit exposures;
° Liquidity risk;
° Market risk.

The Organization recognizes that it is essential to have efficient and effective risk management processes
in place. To enable this, the Organization has established a risk management framework, whose main
purpose is to protect the Organization from risk and allow it to achieve its performance objectives.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the determination of the Organization’s risk
management objectives, policies and oversight of the Organization’s risk management framework. The
overall objective of the Board of Directors is to set polices that seek to reduce risks as far as possible
without unduly affecting the Organization's competitiveness and flexibility. Whilst retaining ultimate
responsibility for them, it has delegated the authority for designing and operating processes that ensure
the effective implementation of the objectives and policies to the Organization.

The Organization’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the
Organization, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits.
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions,
products and services offered. The Organization, through its training and management standards and
procedures, aim to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment, in which all employees
understand their roles and obligations.

Credit, market and liquidity risks both at the portfolio and transactional levels are managed and
controlled through a system of Credit Committees and an Asset and Liability Management Committee
(ALCO). Risk Committee is responsible for developing, monitoring risk management policies and
exercising control over the risk in the legislation and regulatory arena and assesses its influence on the
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Organization’s activity. This approach allows the Organization to minimize potential losses from the
investment climate fluctuations in the Republic of Armenia.

There have been no significant changes in the risk management department since year-end or in any risk
management policies.

Credit risk management.

The Organization is exposed to credit risk which is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail
to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss.

The main business of the Organization is to provide micro-loans. Respectively credit risk is of crucial
importance in the Micro Financing Organization risk management. To avoid significant financial damage
caused by this the Organization uses various methods to identify and manage effectively the credit risks.

The Microfinance industry is generally exposed to credit risk through its loans to customers and bank
deposits. With regard to the loans to customers this risk exposure is concentrated within the Republic of
Armenia. The exposure is monitored on a regular basis to ensure that the credit limits and credit worthiness
guidelines established by the Organization’s risk management policy are not breached.

Risk management and monitoring is performed within set limits of authority. These processes are
performed by the Credit Risk Department, Credit Committee and the Organization’s Management Board.
Before any application is approved by the Credit Committee, all recommendations on credit processes
(borrower’s limits approved, or amendments made to loan agreements, etc.) are reviewed and approved
by the Credit Risk Department. Daily risk management is performed by the Head of Credit Risk
Management Department.

The Organization’s credit policy is determined by the number of internal policies and procedures, where
all the related requirements, along with respective controls are clearly defined, including loan
disbursement, monitoring of delinquent loans, etc.

The Organization continuously monitors the performance of individual credit exposures and regularly
reassesses the creditworthiness of its customers. The review is based on the customer’s most recent
monitoring and financial analysis, as well as other information submitted by the borrower, or otherwise
obtained

Apart from individual customer analysis the credit portfolio is periodically assessed by the Internal Control
department with regard to credit concentration and market risks.

The Credit Committee is the analytical body responsible for analyzing the information in the loan
applications, assessing and reducing the credit risks as far as possible. The Credit Committee is the
independent body within the Organization authorized to make the final decision about financing or
rejecting the loan application.

Accuracy and correctness of information presented to the Credit Committee is the responsibility of the
credit officer, who fills in the initial application after the due scrutiny of the applicant’s business and its
credit risks. Eventually the Credit Committee members assess the application against the established
criteria (applicant’s credit history, financial condition, competitive ability, etc.).

Each branch is required to implement Organization's credit policies and procedures, with credit approval
authorities set by the internal regulations. Each branch manager reports on all credit related matters to
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Management. Each branch is responsible for the quality and performance of its credit portfolio and for
monitoring and controlling all credit risks in its portfolio. Internal Audit and Internal Control Departments
undertake regular audits of branches and Organization's credit processes.

The Organization’s Credit Risk Department reviews ageing analysis of outstanding loans and follows up past
due balances. Management therefore considers it to be appropriate to provide ageing and other
information about credit risk.

The Organization structures the level of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk
accepted in relation to one borrower, or groups of borrowers, and to industry and geographical segments.
Limits on the level of credit risk by a borrower and a product (by industry sector, by region) are approved
periodically by the Management Board. The exposure to any one borrower is further restricted by sub-
limits covering on and off-balance sheet exposures which are set by the Credit Committee. Actual
exposures against limits are monitored daily to ensure that the credit limits and creditworthiness
guidelines established by the Organization’s risk management policy are not breached.

Where appropriate, and in the case of most loans, the Organization obtains collateral and personal
guarantee. However, a significant portion of loans is personal lending, where no such facilities can be
obtained. Such risks are monitored on a continuous basis and are subject to annual or more frequent
reviews.

Credit risk measurement

Expected credit loss measurement

IFRS 9 outlines a ‘three-stage’ model for impairment based on changes in credit quality since initial
recognition as summarized below:

e  Afinancial instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial recognition is classified in ‘Stage 1’ and
has its credit risk continuously monitored by the Organization.

o If a significant increase in credit risk (SICR) since initial recognition is identified, the financial
instrument is moved to ‘Stage 2’ but is not yet deemed to be credit-impaired.
° If the financial instrument is credit-impaired, the financial instrument is then moved to ‘Stage 3'.

° Financial instruments in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at an amount equal to the portion of
lifetime expected credit losses that result from default events possible within the next 12 months.
Instruments in Stages 2 or 3 have their ECL measured based on expected credit losses on a lifetime
basis.

e  Apervasive concept in measuring ECL in accordance with IFRS 9 is that it should consider forward-
looking information.

e  Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets are those financial assets that are credit-
impaired on initial recognition. Their ECL is always measured on a lifetime basis (Stage 3).

Write-off
When periodic collective historical recovery analysis indicates that the Organization does not expect

significant additional recoveries after certain months in default (“MID”), it is the policy of the
Organization to write-off loans on a collective basis.
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Amount outstanding on financial assets that were written off during the reporting period and are still
subject to enforcement activity is AMD 1,506,919 thousand .

Grouping with similar credit risk characteristics
Financial assets are split into two segments for the purposes of PD calculation:

e Small (for loan amounts up to AMD 500,000 (equivalent to USD 1041)
e  Medium and large (for loan amounts above AMD 500,000 or equivalent to USD 1041)

The segments above reflect the level of assessment of client creditworthiness, with the Large segment
exhibiting a comparatively stricter assessment. The historical default rate is utilized as an indicator of
strictness, such that the difference in default rates is maximized between the segments.

Rating Model

All available information (product groups, industries, etc.) are used to derive internal ratings for each
segment. In such a way groups with the same risk characteristics are created and used afterwards to
adjust the PD curve of the segment.

Measurement of ECL

The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the term structure of the following variables:

. Probability of default (PD);
e  Loss given default (LGD);
e  Exposure at default (EAD).

These parameters are generally derived from internally developed statistical models and other historical
data.

Probability of default (PD)

The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial obligation (as per “Definition of
default and credit-impaired” above), either over the next 12 months (12M PD) or over the remaining
lifetime (Lifetime PD) of the obligation.

The Lifetime PD is developed by applying a maturity profile to the current 12M PD. The maturity profile
looks at how defaults develop on a portfolio from the point of initial recognition throughout the lifetime
of the loans. The maturity profile is based on historical observed data and is assumed to be the same
across all assets within a portfolio and credit grade band. This is supported by historical analysis.
Probability of Default is modeled by survival function, which is based on hazard rates.

Hazard rates are obtained by Cox proportional hazard model, which is a semi-parametric model, it uses
assumed simple form for effect of covariates and the exact value of free parameters is estimated with
partial likelihood. The baseline is obtained by non-parametrical methods. A macroeconomic overlay can
be directly included into the hazard function through a time-dependent variable. From obtained hazard
rates, then Point-in-Time (“PiT”) PD is derived, i.e. marginal PDs assigned to a respective date.
Observation period for modeling cox hazard rates is 5 years.
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Sensitivity test for macroeconomic parameters shows not material effect as at December 31, 2021 and
2020.

Loss given default (LGD)

LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss if there is a default. The Organization estimates LGD parameters
based on the history of recovery rates of claims against defaulted counterparties. The LGD model
considers cash recoveries only. LGD is calculated on a discounted cash flow basis using the EIR as the
discounting factor.

Secured loans utilize collateral values, whereas unsecured and guaranteed loans are using recovery rates.

Exposure at default (EAD)

EAD is based on the amounts the Organization expects to be owed at the time of default, over the next
12 months (12M EAD) or over the remaining lifetime (Lifetime EAD).

Incorporation of forward-looking information

The Organization incorporates forward-looking information into both its assessment of whether the
credit risk of an instrument has increased significantly since its initial recognition and its measurement of
ECL.

The Organization has identified and documented the key drivers of credit risk and credit losses for the
portfolio using an analysis of historical data, has assessed the impact of macro-economic variables on PD

and recovery rate. The macro-economic variable which was involved in the analysis is a real growth rate
of GDP.

The table below summarizes the principal macroeconomic indicators included in the economic scenarios
used on December 31, 2021, for the years 2022 to 2026:

2022 2023 2024 2025 2026
Nominal GDP growth rate, % Baseline 10.5% 9.1% 8.52% 8.26% 8.18%

Credit quality of loans to customers

The following table provides information on the credit quality of loans to customers as of December 31,

2021:

Loan portfolio Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Gross Carrying Amount

Current 14,981,927 740,935 885,327 16,608,189

Past due 1-30 days . 279,588 75,784 355,372

Past due 31-60 days - 110,788 68,706 179,494

Past due 61-90 days - 60,625 16,003 76,628

Past due more than 90 days - 5,898,308 5,898,308
14,981,927 1,191,936 6,944,128 23,117,991

Expected credit losses (284,629) (150,464) (4,435,174) (4,870,267)

Total loan portfolio 14,697,298 1,041,472 2,508,954 18,247,724
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The following table provides information on the credit quality of loans to customers as of December 31,

2020:

Loan portfolio Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Gross Carrying Amount

Current 14,291,911 1,617,785 401,750 16,311,446

Past due 1-30 days 9,788 1,146,962 67,031 1,223,781

Past due 31-60 days m 459,574 89,774 549,348

Past due 61-90 days - 734,662 111,006 845,668

Past due more than 90 days - - 5,368,558 5,368,558
14,301,699 3,958,983 6,038,119 24,298,801

Expected credit losses (363,635) (765,031) (3,359,903) (4,488,569)

Total loan portfolio 13,938,064 3,193,952 2,678,216 19,810,232

The table that follows shows transfers of loans gross carrying amounts in AMD thousand between stages
as of 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL Total

Loans to customers at amortized cost
Gross carrying amount as at

January 1, 2020 22,306,800 962,131 2,991,471 26,260,402
Changes in the gross carrying amount
-Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 (12,864,445) 12,864,445 - -
-Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 4,484,393 (4,484,393) - -
-Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 - (4,055,158) 4,055,158 -
-Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2 - 52,154 (52,154) -
-Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3 (53,486) - 53,486 -
New financial instruments originated or purchased 16,533,357 - - 16,533,357
Repayment of principal amount (13,481,792) (378,307) (306,383) (14,166,482)
Changes in interest accrual 593,608 50,368 503,509 1,147,485
Modification of contractual cash flows of financial
instruments 82,642 (8,161) (2,794) 71,687
Derecognition during the period (3,740,132) (1,371,486) (203,820) (5,315,438)
Write-offs 5 . (1,175,981) (1,175,981)
Foreign exchange differences 440,754 327,390 175,627 943,771
Gross carrying amount as at December 31, 2020 14,301,699 3,958,983 6,038,119 24,298,801
Changes in the gross carrying amount
-Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 (2,396,518) 2,396,518 - -
-Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 1,401,331 (1,401,331) - &
-Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 - (3,218,463) 3,218,463 -
-Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2 - 221,315 (221,315) -
-Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3 (33,669) - 33,669 -
New financial instruments originated or purchased 14,872,006 - - 14,872,006
Repayment of principal amount (10,973,001) (1,348,658) (757,107) (13,078,766)
Changes in interest accrual 279,265 (264,980) 951,096 965,381
Modification of contractual cash flows of financial
instruments 167 (2,487) (7,402) (9,722)
Derecognition during the period (2,090,416) 963,512 (469,272) (1,596,176)
Write-offs - - (1,556,907) (1,556,907)
Foreign exchange differences (378,937) (112,473) (285,216) (776,626)
Gross carrying amount as at December 31, 2021 14,981,927 1,191,936 6,944,128 23,117,991
Loss allowance as at December 31, 2021 (284,629) (150,464) (4,435,174) (4,870,267)
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The table that follows shows transfers of loans loan loss allowances in AMD thousand between stages as

of 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL Total

Loss allowance - Loans to customers at amortized

cost
Loss allowance as at January 1, 2020 282,736 157,910 1,897,841 2,338,487
Changes in the loss allowance amount
-Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 (335,573) 335,573 - -
-Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 518,432 (518,432) - -
-Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 - (1,532,827) 1,532,827 -
-Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2 - 29,710 (29,710) -
-Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3 (4,996) - 4,996 -
New financial instrument originated or purchased 494,327 - - 494,327
Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs and Modification of

contractual cash flows of financial instrument (61,596) 2,328,015 1,187,827 3,454,246
Derecognition during the period (535,864) (77,398) (163,333) (776,595)
Write-offs - - (1,175,981) (1,175,981)
Foreign exchange differences 6,169 42,480 105,436 154,085
Loss allowance as at

December 31, 2020 363,635 765,031 3,359,903 4,488,569
Changes in the loss allowance amount
-Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 (77,533) 77,533 - -
-Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 444,193 (444,193) - -
-Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 - (1,010,352) 1,010,352 -
-Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2 - 131,322 (131,322) -
-Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3 (492) - 492 -
New financial instrument originated or purchased 846,249 - - 846,249
Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs and Modification of

contractual cash flows of financial instrument (1,117,849) 690,071 1,940,142 1,512,364
Derecognition during the period (165,545) (45,130) (30,051) (240,726)
Write-offs - . (1,556,907) (1,556,907)
Foreign exchange differences (8,029) (13,818) (157,435) (179,282)
Loss allowance as at December 31, 2021 284,629 150,464 4,435,174 4,870,267

During the years ended December 31, 2021, and 2020, the Organization modified the contractual cash
flows on certain loans to customers. All such loans were transferred to at least Stage 2 with a loss
allowance measured at an amount equal lifetime expected credit losses.

In respect of loans modified during the year, the amortized cost immediately before the loan was
modified and the resulting gain or loss arising from the modification is set out below

2021 2020
Amortized cost before modification 883,712 12,342,547
Impairment allowance (315,812) (2,014,439)
Net modification loss (15,692) (155,631)
Net loans to customers 552,208 10,172,477

As at 31 December 2021 there are no any loans that have been previously modified, when they were in
Stage 2/3, which are now categorized as Stage 1.
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Renegotiated loans and advances. Loans and advances are generally renegotiated either as part of

an ongoing customer relationship or in response to an adverse change in the circumstances

of the borrower. In the latter case, renegotiation can result in an extension of the due date of payment or
repayment plans under which the Organization offers a concessionary rate of interest to genuinely
distressed borrowers. This will result in the asset continuing to be overdue and will be individually
impaired where the renegotiated payments of interest and principal will not recover the original carrying
amount of the asset. In other cases, renegotiation will lead to a new agreement, which is treated

as a new loan.

The carrying amount of renegotiated Loans to customers is in the amount of AMD 4,145,465 thousand as
at December 31, 2021 (as at December 31, 2020: AMD 4,156,230 thousand).

The banking industry is generally exposed to credit risk through its loans to customers and interbank
deposits. With regard to the loans to customers this risk exposure is concentrated within the (country).
The exposure is monitored on a regular basis to ensure that the credit limits and credit worthiness
guidelines established by the Organization’s risk management policy are not breached.

Off-balance sheet risk. The Organization applies fundamentally the same risk management policies for
off-balance sheet risks as it does for its on-balance sheet risks.

Geographical concentration. The geographical concentration of the Organization’s assets and liabilities
as at December 31, 2021 is set out below:

Republic of OECD
Armenia countries Other Total

Non-derivative financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,549,987 - - 1,549,987
Loans to customers 18,247,724 - - 18,247,724
Other financial assets 18,342 - - 18,342
Total non-derivative financial assets 19,816,053 - - 19,816,053
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Other borrowed funds 4,194,344 6,241,102 - 10,435,446
Debt securities issued 3,540,061 - - 3,540,061
Lease liabilities 500,013 - - 500,013
Other financial liabilities 77,542 960 - 78,502
Total non-derivative financial liabilities 8,311,960 6,242,062 - 14,554,022
Net position on non-derivative financial
instruments 11,504,093 (6,242,062) - 5,262,031
Net position 11,504,093 (6,242,062) - 5,262,031

Geographical concentration. The geographical concentration of the Organization’s assets and liabilities
as at December 31, 2020 is set out below:
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Republic of OECD
Armenia countries Other Total

Non-derivative financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 724,687 - - 724,687
Loans to customers 19,810,232 - - 19,810,232
Other financial assets 18,010 - - 18,010
Total non-derivative financial assets 20,552,929 - - 20,552,929
Non-derivative financial liabilities <
Other borrowed funds 2,360,552 7,121,993 79,811 9,562,356
Debt securities issued 5,030,607 - - 5,030,607
Lease liabilities 510,764 - 510,764
Other financial liabilities 281,086 11,303 - 292,389
Total non-derivative financial liabilities 8,183,009 7,133,296 79,811 15,396,116
Net position on non-derivative financial
instruments 12,369,920 (7,133,296) (79,811) 5,156,813
Net position 12,369,920 (7,133,296) (79,811) 5,156,813

The Organization enters into numerous transactions where the counterparties that are not rated by
international rating agencies. The Organization has developed internal models, which allow it to
determine the creditability of counterparties.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk management. Liquidity risk refers to the availability of sufficient funds to meet borrowed
funds withdrawals and other financial commitments associated with financial instruments as they actually
fall due.

The Organization's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Organization's reputation.

The ALCO controls these types of risks by means of maturity analysis and determining the Organization'’s
strategy for the next financial period. In order to manage liquidity risk, the Organization performs daily
monitoring of future expected cash flows on clients’ operations, which is a part of assets/liabilities
management process. Current liquidity is managed by Treasurer, so Treasury maintains a portfolio of
short-term liquid assets, largely made up of short-term deposits, to ensure that sufficient liquidity is
maintained for current liquidity support and cash flow optimization.

An analysis of liquidity and interest rate risk is presented in the following table. The presentation below is
based upon the information provided internally to key management personnel of the Organization.

The borrowed amounts as at reporting date, in respect of which the defaults had taken place, amounting
AMD 2,563,885 thousand for which as at December 31, 2021 the Organization have had obtained waivers
from the lenders and these loans will be repaid according to their contractual terms

23



20s'8L - e - T05'8L sanjiqel| [epueuly JBYI0
saiyjqoif jp1aupulf Bulipaqg 353433ul-UON

LLT'L88 = = > LLT'L88 saiyjiqel| |erdueuly Suleaq 15a493ul S|qeLIBA [B301L

LL1°L88 = = = LLT°188 %9°5+ 40dI1 owg spunj psmo.iog

SIUBWNIISUI 33D }53431U] 3|GDIIDA

€VE‘88S'ET 8rz'sov's 8TIVrZ’9 rz8'ors’t £S1'86 saijjiqel] |eloueuly Sulieaq 1sa4ajul paxyy [B101
£10°00S T£S'SOE 978071 €75V €/0'6T P aran san|iqel| 9589
T90°0¥S'E - YIPLIST L¥97T0T - %976 panss| sa1}lN23s 1930
6928156 ££9'660°S 8/8°609°E VEQ'E9L 080°6L %9L°CT spunj pamollog

SjUaWNIISUl 310J 153131Ul PaXid
SJUSWILILIOD PUE SIIN[IGE]| |BIDUBUY SAIJEALIDP-UON

€50'9T8'6T 69Z'vE6°0T 900'6ZE'S 760°Z8T'T 989'0LE'T S185SE |EIoUBULY SAIIBALIDP-UOU [B30L
066'€Z9 = = = 066'€Z9 s12sse |eloueul Sulieaq Jsalajul-uou [ejo]
TVE'ST - - - vE'ST syasse |epueuly Jayl0
8v9's09 > - - 8¥9's09 sjuajeAinba ysed pue ysed

51355D [pjoupulf Bulipaq 353433ul-UON
£90°Z6T'6T 692'vE6’0T 900'62€’S Z60°731'T 969°9VL'T s)asse |ejpueuly Sulieaq 3saisjul paxyy [B30L
vZL'LbT'8T 697'vE60T 900'62E’S 260781'T LSE'208 %8T 8¢ T $19Wo3snd 0} SUeo]
6EE'VY6 - = = GEEVY6 %IV’ T sjuajeainba ysea pue ysed

SIUSLLNIISUI )0 }S34ajul paxid
S19SSE |E[JUEUL) SAIIBALISP-UON

|elol sieah § JEELE S syjuow g yjuow ajel
1202 ‘1€ Jsquiasag 034eaA T 0} syjuow g 0] yuow | ordn 153123Ul DAIPDYD
adesane paysiapm
TZ0Z ‘T€ Joquiaseq

(paip3s asimiaylo ssajun ‘QIY pupsnoys uj)
120z ‘T€ ¥39N3D30 A3AN3 ¥V3IA JHL HO4
SIN3NILVIS TVIDONVNI4 FJHL OL SILON

ANVAINOD X201S LNIOf a3S012 NOILVZINYDHO L11a3d) TVSHIAINN VONI



S5

626'2S50C 019'S¥6°0T 7092699 9EZ'TYI'T T8Y'ELY'T S19SSE |BIDUBUL) DAIIEALISP-UOU |EI0]
8€9'80C = z = 8£980T s)asse |elpueuly Sulieaq 1sa3iajul-uou [el0]
010’ST = = - 0T08T $1955E |EDURULY JAYI0
879061 = : - 879061 sjuajeAInba ysed pue ysed
s1assp (pppupulf BuLiDaq 1saiajul-UoN
T6Z'vreE'0T 0T9'sv6°0T 209'769'9 9ETIVP'T £v8'roZ'T sjasse [eppueuly Sulieaq 1sa1ajul paxy [e30L
ZET'018'6T 019's¥6'0T 709'769'9 9ET TIP'T ¥8L'0EL %91°CE S19Wo3snd 03 sUeo]
650°VES 2 Z & 6S0°VES %0P'T sjus|eAIND3 Ysed pue yse)
sjuawWnIIsul 33pJd 3sadajul paxid
S135SE |BIJUBUL) BAIIEALIDP-UON
|elol sieah g Jealh T syjuow g yuow 1 3]EJ }S2U3JUI1 BAIBYS
0702 ‘1€ Joqwiadeg ojJeah 1 0] syjuow g 03 yjuow T o1 dn agesane pajysiom
070z ‘T€ J2quiad2g
(s6€°856) s - 5 (s6€'856) MO0
08Z'096 - - = 082'096 Mmoju|
s1oenuoa dems a8ueydxa usialod
$)95SE [BIJUBUL) SAIIBALIR]
916'€92’S (so1's92) £000S9 6EL'80E'T Emwu /snjdang Aupinby| aanepwn)
120'62S'S (zt1'ste) (z€L'859) 6EL'80ET ; (deg)/snjding Alipinbr]
5881 = = = 588'T sdems Adua1ind - pa[33as Ss01D
SjUSLUNIISUl [BIDUBUL SAIIBALIRQ
EVS'9TL'Y (8v'218) VE9'Z0T 99g'19L (deg)/snjding Ananisuas 3saiaiul aanenwn)
120'625°S (zT1'ste) (z€£'859) 99€'19L (deg)/sn|dins AyAnIsuas 353181U]
ZTO'VSSYT 8pZ'sov’s 8TT'P¥Z'9 vz8'ovs’t 7£8'€90'T Sali|IQE]| [BIUBUL} SAIIBALIDP-UOU |B10]
205'82 = = = 205'8L saiyjiqel| [eloueuly Sueaq 3saiajul-uou [ejol

(pa1p3s asimiay1o ssajun ‘QNY pupsnoys uj)
1202 “TE ¥39IN303A a3aN3 HV3A FHL HOH
SLINIW3ILYLS TVIDONVNI4 3HL OL SILON

ANVJINOD XJ01S INIOf 3SOTD NOILLVZINYDYO 11a3d) TVSHIAINN VYINIA



9s

(065'zzS) - = = (065°2ZS) MOIANO
ZrL'zes - e = ThL'ees moju|
spelluod dems a8uBYIXD ugiaio4

$19SSE |EIDUBUY SAEBALISQ

¥0680€’S (ves'sze) (9z¥'8€0’s) (86672ZS'S) (des)/snjdins Aypinbij aAnejnwn)

BEV'VEL9 768CICY TLS'98Y (866'72S'S) des Aypinbry

st i o = st sdems AJua.1ind — paj31as 55019
sjUaWINIISI [BIDUBUY 3AIlBALIRT

¥95'0vZ's (r£8'€68) (£z8'vS6'Y) (66E‘THY'S) (ded)/snjdins AAnisuas 1524a3u SAREINWND

SEFVET'9 £56'090'Y 2L5°98Y (66ETHY'S) (ded)/snjdans Anaiisuas 353193y

9TT'96€'ST ZLT'TISY 6Y9'TEYT ¥99'7S6 1£9'866'9 sai3ijiqel] [elDUBUL BAIIBALIDP-UOU B30
68E'26C = * = 68E'762 saniiqel] [e1aueuly Sulieaq 152423ul-uou [B301
68E'26T s = - 68ET6T senl|Iqe]| [eIdUBUL 13Y10
saijiqoyj [plpupulf bulipag 353133Ul-UON

Z81'v96 EV6'VEG = - B6ES'6Z saiigel| |erueuly Suleaq 1sa12jul |qelen |B101
Z8t'v96 £V6'VED = = 6E5'6C 99°G+ HOgIT ow9 spunj pamodiog
SjUBWNIISUY 3104 153133U) 3|GDIIDA

SYZ'6ET'YT 62Z'9L8'E 6v9'TE9T ¥99'vS6 £0£'9£9'9 SenIjIqel] |elpueUly Bulieaq 1sa4a3ul paxy [e301
voL'01s £8€'S8T 6E6'TST 046'6 TLV'E9 %06'CT saijljiqel] ases]
L09°0€0'S 98T IYS’E SESVTY'T £88'79 = %056 panss| sa131N23s 1924
¥£8'L65'8 099°6t TLT'SS0T 118'6L8 TETETY9 %vT'8 spunj pamoliog

SJUaWNIISUI 2301 3S3131UI PAXI
SJUSWIIWWOD PUE S3I|IGeI| [BIDUBUL SAIJBALIIP-UON

(pa1p1s asiMIay3o sSajun ‘QINY pubsnoy} uy)
1202 ‘T€ ¥39W3D3A A3AN3 YV3A JHL ¥O4
SIN3IWILVLS TYIONVNI4 3HL O1 SILON

ANVdINIOD MD0LS INIOf @3SOTD NOILVZINYOYHO 11340 TvSHIAINN VONIH



LS

T20'rsSs'vl SZ6'L88'ST 90Z'€ET9 TP6'ELL'D 691°168'T 609'680°T sanjiqe|
|euBUY |BIOL
70S'8L 70S'8L - = = 7058/ saiyijIqel] [eueuy Suleaq 158.ajul-ucu [e30)
[411:72 20S'8L ? = 2 705'8L san|iqel| [eloueul JBYI0
sanyiqoy jpupulf Buiipaq 153133ul-UoN
LLT'L88 SZE'688 < E * S7£'688 sanjiqel |eloueuy Sulleaq 352Ul d|qeleA |e1ol
LLT'L88 SZE'688 2 - - czE'688 %9°G+ spunj pamoliog
Hodgdin owg

sjUaWINJISUl 3104 153433Ul 3|qDIIDA
EVE'BBSET 860'0Z6'V'T 90Z'€ET9 Tt6'€LL’D 691'T68'T [4: 7 x4l sanljiqel| [epueuly
Sulieaq 15a123ul paxiy |e30L
£10°005 ves'er9 88ETTY S81'/LST v€9'8Y LTIEVE %ETTT salljiqel| asea
T90°0VS'E 69€°969E £ 076'829°C 6¥%'£90'T S %9t'6 penssi sal1lindas 1424
692'8¥S'6 S0Z‘18501 818°0TL'S 9€8°/86°E 980°GLL So9b'l6 %9L°CT spunj pamo.iog
sjuawnisul 330y
153131U1 paxid

junowe Suthuie) |e1oL siedA g0} JedA | JeaA 1 syjuowl yjuow T o3 dn B ETTRLEITE]

03 syjuow g €01 yjuow agine payysiom

TZ0Z ‘1€ Jaquiadag

"poisad Suipiodal ay3 JO pua Yyl 18 SIAIND el 1S313JUI WO PIALISP SIJUNOWE pajunodsipun ay3 ‘@14 SuileO|} D48 SMOJJ 152491U1 1Y)
JU1X@ 9Y1 0] ‘SMOJ} ysed [edipulad pue 1sa12iul yioq apn|oul s9|qel ay ] "syunowe Jusiaglp Apueaijiusis 3e Jo ‘Ja14ea Ajpuedyiusis undd0 pinod Mojaq 3|qe3 dy3 ul papnjul
SMOJJ Used Jey] pa12adxa 10u si 3 “Aliniew [enjoeijuod 3|qissod 3sall4ea J1ay) JO Siseq Byl uo saliljigel] [BIDUBUL JO SMOJ} YSEd pa1unolsipun ayl uo paseq dn umelp uaaq

aney sa|qel 8y ‘spoliad JuswAiedas paaide yiim sanl|iqel| [IDUBUY SAIIBALIDP-UOU S 10} Ajunjew jenoesiuod Sujuiewad s,uoneziuesiQ ayl |le1sp s9|qel Suimo||o} ayL

"SMOJJul Ysed Jo Suiwil pa1aadxa syl uo paseq pue judwliedull 10y UBMOJ[E JO 19U STUNOWE
SulA1led J1ay] 18 papn|oul aJe sueoj pasiedw| ‘pouad Suipiodal Y3 JO PUD 33 1B PIUIWLISIDP SR 15aI1UL JO $S9]1BWIISD 950Y1 03 JaJ4Ip S9IeJ 1S3121Ul 3|qelieA uj sadueyd Ji
agueyd 01 123(gNs SI S3111[1GRI| PUE SIASSE [BIDUBUL) SAIIBALIDP-UOU Y30q J0) SJUBWINIISUL 318 3SJ93ul S|qBIIBA 10} 9A0GE papnul sjunowe ay] ’sai31dniew |enidediuod syl

uo paseq pue syunowe SuiAiied 112yl e S31}|Iqel| pue S19sSe [eldUeUl) SAIIBALISP-UOU JO sisAjeue Ajunjew pajoadxa 8yl Moys 2A0qe sa|qel 3yl -ded Aypinbi| aAnenwIn)

(pa1p3s asimiaylo ssajun ‘QNY pupsnoys uj)
TZ0T ‘T€ ¥39IN303A A3AN3T ¥V3A FHL YOS
SININILYLS TVIONVNI4 3HL O1 SILON

ANVdINOD XJ01S LNIOf @3SO1) NOILVZINYOHO 11a34¥D TVSHIAINN VONIS



85

9TT'96€'ST 6v0°Z829T 9/£'08T'S 7S9'€80°E 786'SY0‘T 6£0°7L69 sanljiqel] |eppueuly [e301
68€°Z6T 68€262 - - 68€E°762 sany|iqel| [e1pueuly Sulieaq 352133ul-Uou [e30]
68£'26Z 68E'C6C = 7 68E'T6T sanjiqel|
|epueuy 18410
sajupiqoy [oppupulf Bulipaq 152431Ul-UON
Z8Y'796 808'FE0‘T 9SL'1L6 ¥60'TE E 8S6°T€ sa1y|iqel|
|epueuly Sulieaq 35313jul d|GEHEA [BIOL
Z8v'v96 808'VE0'T 9SL'TL6 ¥60'TE - 8S6'TE %99+ spunj pamoJlog
H04I7 owyg

sjuawWnJsul 310y
152423U1 3|qDIIDA
SPZ'6ET'VT 7S8'vS6'pT 079'80Z°v 855'ZS0°E 786'SK0'T 269°'L¥9°9 sanyjiqel] | EIDUBULY
Bunieaq 35a493u1 paxyy |ejol
¥9L4'0TS 666'SZ9 T9£'89€ 876T6T €L8Ty LEVTT %06'CT salyjiqel] asea
£09'0€0's 709'859°s C6E98LE S0T'29L'T SOT'0TT a %056 penss| saRLNJ9s 1qad
v£8'L65'8 1SZ'0L9°8 L9V'ES SZS'LB0'T ¥00°€68 S57'979°9 %vT'8 spunj pamodlog
sjuawniIsul
2104 353433U1 Paxi4

junowe SuiAue) |elolL sieah golieaA [ 1eah T syjuow yuow T ordn 3Bl “Jul ‘P3PS

01 syjuow € 01 yuow T asine paySiam

0202 ‘1€ 1aqwi223@g

ANVJINOD XJ0LS INIOf A3SO1D NOILVZINVDYO 11a3dd TVSYIAINN YONIH

(pa103s 3simMIay30 ssajun ‘gNIY pupbsnoy uj)
TZ0Z ‘T€ 439IN3D3A A3ANT ¥V3IA 3HL HOd
SIN3IWAILYLS TVIDONYNI4 3H1 O1 S310N



FINCA UNIVERSAL CREDIT ORGANIZATION CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
(In thousand AMD, unless otherwise stated)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the Organization’s earnings or capital or its ability to meet business objectives
will be adversely affected by changes in the level or volatility of market rates or prices. Market risk covers
interest rate risk and currency risk that the Organization is exposed to. There have been no changes as to
the way the Organization measures risk or to the risk it is exposed or the manner in which these risks are
managed and measured.

Interest rate risk. The Organization’s cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the market interest rates, and the fair value
interest rate risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in the
prevailing levels of market interest rates on both the value and cash flow risks.

Interest rate sensitivity. The Organization manages fair value interest rate risk through periodic
estimation of potential losses that could arise from adverse changes in market conditions. The
Organization’s management conducts monitoring of the Organization’s current financial performance,
estimates the Organization’s sensitivity to changes in fair value interest rates and its influence on the
Organization’s profitability.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for non-
derivative instruments at the end of the reporting period. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is
prepared assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year. A 200 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate
risk internally to key management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 200 basis points higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Organization’s profit for the year ended December 31, 2021 would increase /decrease by AMD 21,307
thousand and (December 31, 2020: increase/decrease by AMD 26,004 thousand).

Currency risk. Currency risk is defined as the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due
to changes in foreign exchange rates. The Organization is exposed to the effects of fluctuations in the
prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows.

The ALCO controls currency risk by management of the open currency position on the estimated basis of
USD devaluation and other macroeconomic indicators, which gives the Organization an opportunity to
minimize losses from significant currency rates fluctuations toward its national currency. The Treasurer
performs daily monitoring of the Organization’s open currency position.

The Organization’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk as at December 31, 2021 is presented in
the table below:
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FINCA UNIVERSAL CREDIT ORGANIZATION CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
(In thousand AMD, unless otherwise stated)

AMD usbD Other Total
Non-derivative financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 269,813 1,236,240 43,934 1,549,987
Loans to customers 12,893,600 5,354,124 - 18,247,724
Other financial Assets 18,115 - 227 18,342
Total non-derivative financial assets 13,181,528 6,590,364 44,161 19,816,053
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowed funds 4,367,275 6,068,171 - 10,435,446
Other financial liabilities 76,474 2,002 26 78,502
Debt securities issued 2,559,806 980,255 - 3,540,061
Lease liabilities 500,013 - - 500,013
Total non-derivative financial
liabilities 7,503,568 7,050,428 26 14,554,022
Open balance sheet position 5,677,960 (460,064) 44,135 5,262,031
Derivative financial instruments
Gross settled - currency swaps (958,395) 960,280 - 1,885
Open position 4,719,565 500,216 44,135 5,263,916

The Organization’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk as at December 31, 2020 is presented
in the table below:

AMD usbD Other Total
Non-derivative financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 409,351 278,283 37,053 724,687
Loans to customers 11,024,356 8,785,876 - 19,810,232
Other financial Assets 18,010 - - 18,010
Total non-derivative financial assets 11,451,717 9,064,159 37,053 20,552,929
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowed funds 2,314,587 7,247,769 - 9,562,356
Other financial liabilities 155,449 136,940 - 292,389
Debt securities issued 3,964,107 1,066,500 - 5,030,607
Lease liabilities 510,764 - - 510,764
Total non-derivative financial
liabilities 6,944,907 8,451,209 - 15,396,116
Open balance sheet position 4,506,810 612,950 37,053 5,156,813
Derivative financial instruments
Gross settled - currency swaps 522,742 (522,590) - 152
Open position 5,029,552 90,360 37,053 5,156,965

Currency risk sensitivity. The following table details the Organization’s sensitivity to a 20% increase and
decrease in the AMD against the USD, 20% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency
risk internally to key management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 20%
change in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes external loans where the denomination
of the loan is in a currency other than the functional currency of the lender or the borrower. A positive
number below indicates an increase in profit before tax where the AMD strengthens 20% against usD.
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December 31, December 31,
2021 2020
Impact on profit or loss (100,043) (18,072)
Impact on equity (100,043) (18,072)

Limitations of sensitivity analysis. The above tables demonstrate the effect of a change in a key assumption
while other assumptions remain unchanged. In reality, there is a correlation between the assumptions and
other factors, It should also be noted that these sensitivities are non-linear, and larger or smaller impacts
should not be interpolated or extrapolated from these results.

The sensitivity analyses do not take into consideration that the Organization’s assets and liabilities are
actively managed. Additionally, the financial position of the Organization may vary at the time that any
actual market movement occurs. For example, the Organization’s financial risk management strategy aims
to manage the exposure to market fluctuations. As investment markets move past various trigger levels,
management actions could include selling investments, changing investment portfolio allocation and taking
other protective action. Consequently, the actual impact of a change in the assumptions may not have any
impact on the liabilities, whereas assets are held at market value in the statement of financial position. In
these circumstances, the different measurement bases for liabilities and assets may lead to volatility in
shareholder equity.

Other limitations in the above sensitivity analyses include the use of hypothetical market movements to
demonstrate potential risk that only represent the Organization’s view of possible near-term market
changes that cannot be predicted with any certainty; and the assumption that all interest rates move in an
identical fashion.

Price risks. Price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in
market prices whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual security or its issuer or
factors affecting all securities traded in the market. The Organization is exposed to price risks of its
products, which are subject to general and specific market fluctuations.

The Organization manages price risk through periodic estimation of potential losses that could arise from
adverse changes in market conditions and establishing and maintaining appropriate stop-loss limits and
margin and collateral requirements. With respect to undrawn loan commitments, the Organization is
potentially exposed to a loss of an amount equal to the total amount of such commitments. However, the
likely amount of a loss is less than that, since most commitments are contingent upon certain conditions
set out in the loan agreements.

Operational risk. Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from systems failure, human error, fraud or
external events. When controls fail to perform, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have
legal or regulatory implications, or lead to financial loss. The Organization cannot expect to eliminate all
operational risks, but it endeavors to manage these risks through a control framework and by monitoring
and responding to potential risks. Controls include effective segregation of duties, access, authorization
and reconciliation procedures, staff education and assessment processes.
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25. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

26.

December 31, 2021

December 31, 2020

Related Total category as Total category as
party per the financial Related party per the financial
balances statements caption balances statements caption
Statement of financial position
Other borrowed funds (note 12)
Comprised of balances with:
- indirect shareholders 887,177 10,435,446 1,934,683 9,562,356
2021 2020
Related Total category as Total category as
party per the financial Related party per the financial
transactions statements caption transactions statements caption
Statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income
Interest expense (note 16) 85,357 1,279,102 56,157 1,536,214
Other operating expenses
(note 20) 268,410 894,319 302,010 812,091
Comprised of transactions with:
- the parent (royalty and
management fees) 142,995 178,417 -
- other related parties (IT and
other services) 125,415 - 123,593
2021 2020
Total category Total category
as per as per
the financial the financial
Related party statements Related party statements
transactions caption transactions caption
Key management personnel compensation:
- short-term employee benefits 154,131 1,403,556 186,784 1,748,827

As at December 31,2021 the Organization’s key management personnel consisted of 3 positions
(December 31, 2020: 3 positions).

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On February 10, 2022 the Organization has issued debt securities on the nominal amounts of AMD
1,400,000 thousand with 12% interest rate and maturity date of February 10, 2025.

On April 20, 2022 the Organization has issued debt securities on the nominal amounts of USD 1,050,000
with 6.5% interest rate and maturity date of April 20, 2024. During January-April 2022 the Organization
attracted additional borrowings of USD 3,000,000 and AMD 656,994 thousand, credit line of AMD 800
million.

In February and April 2022 the Organization has made repayments of matured debt securities issued at
the nominal amount of USD 2,000,000 and AMD 1,000,000 thousand respectively.

In February 2022, the economic and political situations in Ukraine and the Russian Federation led to
increased volatility in the Russian financial market. The uncertainty of the development of events is
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increased. The United States, the European Union, the United Kingdom and a number of other countries
have imposed a number of new sanctions against Russia.

These events did not have a significant impact on the Organization's operating activities and its financial
statements. The Organization's management monitors the current changes in the economic and political
situation and takes measures that it considers necessary to maintain the sustainability and development
of the Organization's business in the near future
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